iz

LONDON

Planning Committee Agenda

Date: Wednesday 18 January 2023

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: Auditorium - Harrow Council Hub, Forward Drive,
Harrow

The date and time of the site visit for Planning Committee Members will be

communicated in due course.

The date and time of the briefing for Planning Committee Members will be

communicated in due course.

Membership (Quorum 3)

Chair:

Conservative Councillors:

Labour Councillors:

Conservative Reserve Members:

Labour Reserve Members:

Councillor Marilyn Ashton

Christopher Baxter (VC)
Salim Chowdhury
Zak Wagman

Ghazanfar Ali
Peymana Assad
Nitin Parekh

Anjana Patel
Norman Stevenson
Ameet Jogia
Nicola Blackman

i A

Simon Brown
Kandy Dolor
Rashmi Kalu

wn =

Contact: Mwim Chellah, Senior Democratic & Electoral Services Officer
Tel: 07761 405966 E-mail: mwimanji.chellah@harrow.gov.uk

Scan this code for the electronic agenda:




Useful Information

Joining the Meeting virtually

The meeting is open to the public and can be viewed online at London Borough of Harrow
webcasts

Attending the Meeting in person

Directions by car:

Go along Kenmore Avenue and head towards the Kenton Recreation Ground. When
approaching the end of the Kenmore Avenue turn right before reaching the Kadwa Patidar
Centre.

The venue is accessible to people with special needs. If you have specific requirements,
please contact the officer listed on the front page of this agenda.

You will be admitted on a first-come-first basis and directed to seats.
Please:

(1)  Stay seated.

(2)  Access the meeting agenda online at Browse meetings - Planning Committee
(3) Put mobile devices on silent.
(4)

(5)

Follow instructions of the Security Officers.
Advise Security on your arrival if you are a registered speaker.

Filming / recording

This meeting may be recorded or filmed, and if you choose to attend, you will be deemed to
have consented to this. Any recording may be published on the Council website.

Agenda publication date: Tuesday 10 January 2023

Planning Committee - 18 January 2023 2


https://harrow.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://harrow.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://moderngov.harrow.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1001&Year=0

Agenda - Part |

Guidance Note for Members of the Public attending the
Planning Committee (Pages 5 - 8)

Attendance by Reserve Members
To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members.

Right of Members to Speak
To agree requests to speak from Councillors who are not Members of the Committee.

Declarations of Interest
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising from
business to be transacted at this meeting, from all Members present.

Minutes (Pages 9 - 16)
That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2022 be taken as read and signed
as a correct record.

Public Questions
To note any public questions received.

Questions will be asked in the order in which they were received. There will be a time
limit of 15 minutes for the asking and answering of public questions.

[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm, Friday 13 January 2023.
Questions should be sent to publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk

No person may submit more than one question].

Petitions
To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors.

Deputations
To receive deputations (if any).

References from Council and other Committees/Panels
To receive references from Council and any other Committees or Panels (if any).

Addendum (To Follow)

Representations on Planning Applications

To confirm whether representations are to be received, under Committee Procedure
Rule 29 (Part 4B of the Constitution), from objectors and applicants regarding planning
applications on the agenda.

Planning Applications Received
Report of the Divisional Director, Planning - circulated separately.
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Planning Protocol, where

Councillors disagree with the advice of the Divisional Director, Planning, it will be the
Members' responsibility to clearly set out the reasons for refusal where the Officer

Planning Committee - 18 January 2023


mailto:publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk

16.

recommendation is for grant. The planning reasons for rejecting the Officer's advice

must be clearly stated, whatever the recommendation and recorded in the minutes. The

Officer must be given the opportunity to explain the implications of the contrary decision.
11.Section 1 - Major Applications

(@) 1/01, Waxwell Lane Car PINNER GRANT (Pages
Park, P/1304/20 17 - 40)

12.Section 2 - Other Applications recommended for Grant

(a) 2/01, 22 Hawthorn Drive, NORTH HARROW GRANT (Pages
P/3789/22 41 -52)
(b) 2/02, 77 Hillview Road, HATCH END GRANT (Pages
P/3574/22 53 - 80)
(c) 2/03, 77 Hillview Road, HATCH END GRANT (Pages
P/3564/22 81 -
108)
(d) 2/04, 43 Morecombe CANONS GRANT (Pages
Gardens, P/4842/21 109 -
138)

13.Section 3 - Other Applications recommended for Refusal - Nil
14.Section 4 - Consultations from Neighbouring Authorities - Nil
16.Section 5 - Prior Approval Applications - Nil

Any Other Urgent Business
Which cannot otherwise be dealt with.

Agenda - Part Il

Data Protection Act Notice

The Council will record the meeting and will place the recording on the Council’s website.

[Note: The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.]

Planning Committee - 18 January 2023 4



Aaenda Annex

Guidance Note for Members of the Pubpua}.ges o8

attending the Planning Committee

Typical Planning Committee layout for the Auditorium

Chief Planning Officer Chair Legal Officer Clerk

Conservative Councillors
Labour Councillors

Planning Officers

Public Seating Area Public Seating Area

Entrance

Order of Committee Business

It is the usual practice for the Committee to bring forward to the early part of the meeting, those
planning applications where notice has been given that objectors wish to speak, or where
members of the public have come to hear the debate. However, often the agendas are quite
long and the Committee may want to raise questions with officers and enter into detailed
discussion over particular applications. This means that members of the public may have to
wait some time before the application they are interested in is discussed. Additionally, the
Committee may take a short break around 8.30 pm.

Rights of Objectors & Applicants to speak at Planning Committees

[Please note that objectors may only speak if they requested to do so by 5.00 pm on the
working day before the meeting]

In summary, where a planning application is recommended for grant by the Divisional Director
of Planning, a representative of the objectors may address the Committee for up to 3 minutes.
Where an objector speaks, the applicant has a right of reply. The Planning Service advises
neighbouring residents and applicants of this procedure.



The Planning Committee is a formal quasi-judicial body of the Council with responsibility for
determining applications, hence the need to apply rules governing the rights of public to speak.
Full details of this procedure are set out in the Council’s Constitution, which also provides useful
information for Members of the public wishing to present petitions, deputations or ask public
questions at Planning Committee, and the rules governing these. The relevant pages of the
Constitution can be accessed via this link:

Harrow Council Constitution - Part 4B Committee Procedure Rules

Addendum

In addition to the agenda, an Addendum is produced on the day before the meeting, with any
final updates included in a second Addendum on the day of the meeting. These documents
update the Committee on any additional information received since the formal agenda was
published and also identifies any applications which have been withdrawn by applicants or
which officers are recommending for deferral.

A limited number of hard copy agendas and addendums are available for the public in
the Auditorium from approximately 6.00 pm onwards on the day of the meeting.

Decisions taken by the Planning Committee
The types of decisions commonly taken by the Planning Committee are set out below:

Refuse permission:

Where a proposal does not comply with the Council’s (or national) policies or guidance and the
proposal is considered unacceptable, the Committee may refuse planning permission. The
applicant can appeal to the Secretary of State against such a decision. Where the Committee
refuse permission contrary to the officer recommendation, clear reasons will be specified by the
Committee at the meeting.

Grant permission as recommended:

Where a proposal complies with the Council’s (or national) policies or guidance and the
proposal is considered acceptable, the Committee may grant permission. Conditions are
normally imposed.

Minded to grant permission contrary to officer’s recommendation:

On occasions, the Committee may consider the proposal put before them is acceptable,
notwithstanding an officer recommendation of refusal. In this event, the application will be
deferred and brought back to a subsequent meeting. Renotification will be carried out to advise
that the Committee is minded to grant the application.

Defer for a site visit:

If the Committee decides that it can better consider an application after visiting the site and
seeing the likely impact of a proposal for themselves, then the application may be deferred until
the next meeting, for an organised Member site visit to take place.

Defer for further information/to seek amendments:

If the Committee considers that it does not have sufficent information to make a decision, or if it
wishes to seek amendments to a proposal, the application may be deferred to a subsequent
meeting.


https://moderngov.harrow.gov.uk/documents/s178787/029%20Part%204B%20Committee%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf

Grant permission subject to a legal agreement:

Sometimes requirements need to be attached to a planning permission which cannot be dealt
with satisfactorily by conditions. The Committee therefore may grant permission subject to a
legal agreement being entered into by the Council and the Applicant/Land owner to ensure
these additional requirements are met.

(Important Note: This is infended to be a general guide to help members of the public
understand the Planning Committee procedures. It is not an authoritative statement of the law.
Also, the Committee may, on occasion, vary procedures).



This page is intentionally left blank



Aacenda ltem 4
Pages 9 to 16

iz

LONDON

Planning Commiittee
Minutes

7 December 2022

Present:

Chair: Councillor Marilyn Ashton

Councillors: Ghazanfar Ali Nitin Parekh
Peymana Assad Norman Stevenson
Christopher Baxter Zak Wagman

In attendance Kuha Kumaran For Minute 122

(Councillors):

Apologies Salim Chowdhury

received:

112. Attendance by Reserve Members

RESOLVED: To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly
appointed Reserve Member:

Ordinary Member Reserve Member

Councillor Salim Chowdhury Councillor Norman Stevenson

113. Right of Members to Speak

RESOLVED: That, in accordance with Committee Procedure Rule 4.1, the
following Councillor, who was not a Member of the Committee, be allowed to
speak on the agenda item indicated:

Councillor Planning Application

Kuha Kumaran 1 Ash Hill Drive HA5 2AG (P/0719/22)

Planning Committee - 7 December 2022 9 Page 54



114.

115.

116.

117.

118.

119.

120.

121.

Declarations of Interest

RESOLVED: To note that the following interests were declared:

Agenda Iltem 2/01 1 Ash Hill Drive HA5 2AG (P/0719/22)

Councillor Norman Stevenson declared a non-pecuniary interest in that he
was an occasional customer of the proposed development. He would remain
in the room whilst the matter was considered and voted upon.

Agenda ltem 3/01 66 Lake View (P/3220/22)

Councillor Nitin Parekh declared a non-pecuniary interest in that he lived near
the proposed development. He would remain in the room whilst the matter
was considered and voted upon.

Minutes

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2022 be
taken as read and signed as a correct record.

Public Questions

RESOLVED: To note that no public questions were received.

Petitions

RESOLVED: To note that there were none.

Deputations

RESOLVED: To note that there were none.

References from Council and other Committees/Panels

RESOLVED: To note that there were none.

Addendum

RESOLVED: To accept the Addendum.

Representations on Planning Applications

RESOLVED: That in accordance with the provisions of Committee Procedure
Rule 29 (Part 4B of the Constitution), representations be received in respect

of items 2/01 and 2/03 on the list of planning applications.

[Note: Planning application 2/03 was subsequently deferred, and so the
representations were not received].

Resolved Iltems

Planning Committee - 7 December 2022 10 Page 55



122.

2/01, 1 Ash Hill Drive, P/0719/22

PROPOSAL: redevelopment to provide three storey building comprising 8 x
2 bed units; proposed vehicle access via supermarket to rear; parking;
landscaping; bin and cycle stores; amenity space (as amended by the
Addendum).

The Committee received representation from Anneliese Pugh (objector), and
Danielle St James (agent for the applicant) who urged the Committee to
refuse, and grant the application, respectively.

The Committee also heard from Councillor Kuha Kumaran, who urged the
Committee to refuse the application.

Councillor Christopher Baxter was concerned about the reduction to car
parking spaces, and how much of it would be lost. How would access by
heavy goods vehicles (HGVs) be addressed during certain times of the day?

The Head of Planning Development advised that those issues were
addressed under paragraph 6.5 of the report. The development would
remove 20 car parking spaces within the 196 space Tesco car park (with 176
remaining). The transport management plan would give details on HGV
access.

Councillors Ghazanfar Ali, Christopher Baxter and Norman Stevenson raised
concerns on safety issues for residents’ access to the car park, and the
narrowness of the pavement.

The Head of Planning Development advised that there was a distance of
about 4.8 metres from the footway to residents’ front entrance, which was
considered adequate. Furthermore, the proposed refuse store, which would
be in a standalone structure at the rear of the site, could be moved to allow for
more resident access. The vehicle parking area was separated from the main
highway (from Cuckoo Hill) by landscaping, and only benefited from
pedestrian access via the bin collection point.

Councillor Nitin Parekh asked how residents of Camden Row would be given
free access to parking at the proposed development.

The Head of Development Planning advised that this would be done using
number plate recognition technology for residents.

Having had regard to the information in the Officer’s report, and having
conducted a site visit, the following were grounds for refusal proposed by
Councillor Marilyn Ashton:

1) the proposed development represents an overdevelopment of the site
by reason of its unsympathetic and bulky design, which would be
visually obtrusive and incongruous in the street scene, resulting in it
appearing to be overbearing, out of keeping and would not preserve
the setting of the Locally Listed cottages along Cuckoo Hill and would
be out of character as regards the lower rise dwelling houses opposite
the site, contrary to the National Planning Framework (2021), CS1

Planning Committee - 7 December 2022 11 Page 56



Harrow Core Strategy (2012), DM1, DM7 Harrow Planning Policy
Framework (2013) and D3 London Plan (2021).

The proposal was seconded by Councillor Norman Stevenson, put to the vote
and agreed.

The Committee voted and resolved to refuse officer recommendations.
RECOMMENDATION A

The Committee was asked to:

1) agree the reasons for approval as set out in the report; and

2) grant planning permission subject to authority being delegated to the
Interim Chief Planning Officer in consultation with the Director of Legal
and Governance Services for the completion of the Section 106 legal
agreement and other enabling legislation and issue of the planning
permission and subject to minor amendments to the conditions (set out
in Appendix 1 of this report) or the legal agreement. The Section 106
Agreement Heads of Terms would cover the following matters:

i. prior to commencement of the development a Deed of Easement
shall be submitted to the Council demonstrating that vehicular and
pedestrian access to the site, via the Tesco site, is provided and
shall be retained in perpetuity;

ii. replacement Tree Planting Contribution (8x Trees at £633.9 p/tree =
£5,071.20);

iii. monitoring fee (£1,870);

iv. Financial contribution towards the ongoing maintenance of the strip
of land designated as Adopted Highways Land fronting Cuckoo Hill
[ETBC];

v. Legal Fees: Payment of Harrow Council’s reasonable costs in the
preparation of the legal agreement.

RECOMMENDATION B

That if the Section 106 Agreement is not completed by 28 February 2023, or
as such extended period as may be agreed by the Interim Chief Planning
Officer, then it is recommended to delegate the decision to REFUSE planning
permission to the Interim Chief Planning Officer on the grounds that: the
proposed development, in the absence of a Legal Agreement to ensure
unimpeded vehicular and pedestrian access to the site, and failure to secure
suitable replacement tree planting would fail to comply with policies CS1 of
the Harrow Core Strategy (2011), Policies DM1, DM2, DM21, DM22 and
DM23 of the Harrow Development Management Policies (2013) and Policies
D3, T5, G5, T6 and T6.1 of the London Plan (2021).

DECISION: REFUSE

The Committee wished it to be recorded that the decision to refuse the
application was by majority of votes.

Planning Committee - 7 December 2022 12 Page 57



123.

124,

125.

Councillors Ali, Ashton, Baxter, Stevenson and Wagman voted to refuse the
application.

Councillors Assad and Parekh voted abstained from voting.

2/02, 43 Morecambe Gardens, P/4842/21

This application was deferred following Officers’ advice, which was agreed
unanimously by the Committee.

2/03, 77 Hillview Road, P/3564/22

PROPOSAL.: variation of condition 2 (approved plans) attached to planning
permission P/3331/16 allowed on appeal reference PP/M5450/W/16/3161002
to allow alterations to elevations.

Councillor Christopher Baxter proposed deferral for the following reasons:

1) the application should be deferred until the next Planning Committee
meeting to determine at the same time this application and the full
planning permission application for retention of these multiple
discrepancies.

The proposal was seconded by Councillor Zak Wagman, put to the vote and
agreed.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee was asked to:
1) agree the reasons for approval as set out in the report; and

2) grant planning permission subject to the conditions listed in Appendix 1
of this report.

DECISION: DEFER

The Committee wished it to be recorded that the decision to defer the
application by majority of votes.

Councillors Ali, Ashton, Baxter, Stevenson and Wagman voted to defer the
application.

Councillors Assad and Parekh voted abstained from voting.

2/04, 2a Charlton Road, P/0721/22

PROPOSAL: redevelopment to provide eight three storey (4 bed) dwellings;
parking; bin and cycle stores; vehicle access and landscaping.

The Committee voted and resolved to accept officer recommendations.

Planning Committee - 7 December 2022 13 Page 58



126.

RECOMMENDATION A
The Committee was asked to:
1) agree the reasons for approval as set out in the report; and

2) grant planning permission subject to authority being delegated to the
Interim Chief Planning Officer in consultation with the Director of Legal
and Governance Services for the completion of the Section 106 a legal
agreement under the Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 and other enabling legislation development and issue of the
planning permission, subject to the conditions, including the insertion or
deletion of conditions as deemed fit and appropriate to the
development or the amendments to the legal agreement as required.
The S106 agreement Heads of Terms would cover the following
matters:

a. Payment of £3,000 prior to the commencement of the development
for a contribution towards the provision of loading restrictions in the
immediate vicinity of the site; this will include design, lining, signing,
traffic order making and consultation.

b. LEGAL COSTS, ADMINISTRATION AND MONITORING
S106 legal and administrative costs.

RECOMMENDATION B

That if, by 28 February 2023 or such extended period as may be agreed in
writing by the Interim Chief Planning Officer, the section 106 Planning
Obligation is not completed, then delegate the decision to the Chief Planning
Officer to REFUSE planning permission for the following reason.

1) the proposed development, in the absence of a Legal Agreement to
ensure appropriate highway signage and implementation of loading
restrictions along Charlton Road for unimpeded vehicular and
pedestrian access to the site, would fail to comply with policies CS1 of
the Harrow Core Strategy (2011), Policies DM1, DM44 and DM50 of
the Harrow Development Management Policies (2013) and Policies D2,
T6, T7 and T9 of the London Plan (2021).

DECISION: GRANT

The Committee wished it to be recorded that the decision to grant the
application was unanimous.

3/01, 66 Lake View, P/3220/22

PROPOSAL.: alterations to the roof; two rooflights in front roof slope; external
alterations.

Planning Committee - 7 December 2022 14 Page 59



127.

Councillors Marilyn Ashton and Nitin Parekh stated that the proposed
development was in a Conservation Area, and would be out of keeping with
other properties.

The Committee agreed to accept officer recommendations.
RECOMMENDATION

The Committee was asked to REFUSE planning permission for the following
reasons:

1) The proposal, by reason of the design of the rear dormer, its
fenestration, use of modern materials would fall at odds, be overly
dominant and obtrusive, failing to respect or harmonise with the
character and appearance of the dwelling house, nor would it preserve
or enhance the character or appearance of the dwelling house or part
of Canons Park Estate Conservation Area, contrary to the design
aspirations of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021), policies
D3 and HC1 of the London Plan (2021), Policies CS1.B and CS1.D of
the Harrow Core Strategy (2012), Policies DM1 and DM7 of the Harrow
Development Management Policies Local Plan (2013), the Adopted
Supplementary Planning Document Residential Design Guide (2010),
and the Supplementary Planning Document Canons Park Estate
Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Strategy (2013).

DECISION: REFUSE

The Committee wished it to be recorded that the decision to refuse the
application was unanimous.

Any Other Urgent Business

Vote of Thanks - Mrinalini Rajaratnam

Councillor Marilyn Ashton, the Chair, led Members in paying tribute to Ms
Mrinalini Rajaratnam, from the Legal Department, and Assistant Team Leader
for Planning and regeneration, for her professionalism and legal advice during

the Committee’s deliberations.

Ms Rajaratnam was leaving Harrow Council to join another local authority.
She had been at Harrow Council for five years.

The video/audio recording of this meeting can be found at the following
link:

https://www.harrow.qov.uk/virtualmeeting

(Note: The meeting, having commenced at 6.30 pm, closed at 8.24 pm).

Planning Committee - 7 December 2022 15 Page 60


https://www.harrow.gov.uk/virtualmeeting

(Signed) Councillor Marilyn Ashton
Chair

Planning Committee - 7 December 2022 16 Page 61



Aaenda Item 11.(a)
Pages 17 to 40

Agenda Item: 1/01

o = application site

T ) [A£10] ALiLo] \Canons

! ank
Hanrow,

[
n\a‘_ z/"} Finnerwood preatd - SE A,
rark \ Little Stanmore
.\ Belmont
\Wéa[dmune \

Headstone Queens
s

Rayners
Lane

South
Harrow

Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner P/1304/20

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

17



LOCATION PLAN

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

18



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW

PLANNING COMMITTEE

18™H JANUARY 2023

APPLICATION NUMBER: P/1304/20
VALIDATION DATE: 26/05/2020
LOCATION: WAXWELL LANE CAR PARK, WAXWELL LANE,

PINNER

(PINNORA MEWS)
WARD: PINNER
POSTCODE: N/A
APPLICANT: HARROW COUNCIL
AGENT: N/A
CASE OFFICER: KIMRY SCHLACTER
EXPIRY DATE: 25/08/2020

PROPOSAL

Variation of condition 27 (affordable housing and financial viability review mechanism)
attached to planning permission P/5680/17 dated 14/06/2018 to allow a change to the
timing for submission of the details to the condition from pre-commencement to 80%
occupation.

The Planning Committee is asked to:

RECOMMENDATION A

1) Agree the reasons for approval as set out in this report.

2) Grant planning permission subject to the Conditions listed in Appendix 1 of this
report.

It is recommended that the decision notice is split in two parts in a format similar to the
conditions at the end of this report i.e. conditions marked with a single asterix (*) are
conditions that will always be binding through the decision notice and conditions marked
with a double asterix (**) includes conditions that would be replaced by a legal agreement,
were the land owner to have the legal locus to enter into the legal agreement. Condition
28 specifically refers to this approach.

REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

The proposal would be a more appropriate timing for the condition, as some of the
necessary information would not be obtainable until close to practical completion of the
project. The application falls under Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General
Regulations 1992.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

19



INFORMATION

This application is reported to Planning Committee as the development concerns a
Council-owned property and therefore falls outside Schedule 1 of the Scheme of
Delegation.

Statutory Return Type: Major Development
Council Interest: Council-owned

Net additional Floorspace: none

GLA Community

Infrastructure Levy (CIL) N/A
Contribution (provisional) :
Local CIL requirement: N/A

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the
processing of the application and the preparation of this report.

EQUALITIES

In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its equalities obligations
including its obligations under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

For the purposes of this application there are no adverse equalities issues.

S17 CRIME & DISORDER ACT

Policy D11 of The London Plan (2021) and Policy DM1 of the Development Management
Polices Local Plan require all new developments to have regard to safety and the measures
to reduce crime in the design of development proposal. It is considered that the
development does not adversely affect crime risk.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

20



1.0

SITE DESCRIPTION

1.1 The application site comprises a 0.34 hectare parcel of land located within the
Pinner Town Centre boundary and is bounded by Waxwell Lane to the west, Love
Lane to the east and Bridge Street to the south.

1.2 The site is currently under development for the permission granted under ref:
P/5680/17 and near completion. The street address for the development is to be
Pinnora Mews.

1.3 The surrounding area comprises a mix of residentail and commercial uses.

2.0 PROPOSAL

21 Permission has been granted (P/5680/17) for the redevelopment of a car park to
provide 20 three storey dwellinghouses and associated works.

2.2 The permission included a condition (Condition 27) requiring the submission of a
Scheme for details of the affordable housing provided on site and the Financial
Viability Review Mechanism.

2.3 The proposal is to vary the timing of the condition so that the information is
required at a point of 80% occupancy of the site, rather than prior to
commencement.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.1 A summary of the relevant planning application history is set out in the table
below:

Ref no. Description Status and date
of decision
HAR/19308 Nine Terraced Houses with Nine Garages Granted:
25/06/196
2
HAR/19308/B Outline Residential Development Granted:
27/02/1964
LBH/2158 Formation of Public Surface Car Park Granted:
21/03/1967
P/1965/19 Non material amendment to planning permission P/5680/17 Approved:
dated 21/03/2018 to allow layout revisions to one proposed 24/05/2019
house
P/5119/19 Details pursuant to Condition 15 (Archaeology) attached to Approved
planning permission P/5680/17 dated 14.6.18 for :
Redevelopment of Car Park to provide 20 Three Storey 14/01/202
Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) (14 x 3 Bedroom Houses & 0
6 x 4 Bedroom Houses), Associated Car & Cycle Parking,
Refuse Storage, Landscaping & Replacement Boundary
Treatment
Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

21




P/5111/19

Details pursuant to Condition 7 (Construction Method
Statement & Logistics Plan) of planning permission
P/5680/17 dated 14/06/2018 for Redevelopment of Car Park
to provide 20 Three Storey Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3)
(14 x 3 Bedroom Houses & 6 x 4 Bedroom Houses),
Associated Car & Cycle Parking, Refuse Storage,
Landscaping & Replacement Boundary Treatment

Approved:
14/01/2020

P/5120/19

Details pursuant to Condition 17 (noise assessment) of
planning permission P/5680/17 dated 14/06/2018 for
Redevelopment of Car Park to provide 20 Three Storey
Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) (14 x 3 Bedroom Houses &
6 x 4 Bedroom Houses), Associated Car & Cycle Parking,
Refuse Storage, Landscaping & Replacement Boundary
Treatment

Approved:
14/01/2020

P/5117/19

Details pursuant to Condition 9 (surface water) attached to
planning permission P/5680/17 dated 14/6/2018 for
Redevelopment of Car Park to provide 20 Three Storey
Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) (14 x 3 Bedroom Houses &
6 x 4 Bedroom Houses), Associated Car & Cycle Parking,
Refuse Storage, Landscaping & Replacement Boundary
Treatment

Approved:
15/01/2020

P/5118/19

Details pursuant to Condition 10 (Foul water drainage)
attached to planning permission P/5680/17 dated 14/6/2018
for Redevelopment of Car Park to provide 20 Three Storey
Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) (14 x 3 Bedroom Houses &
6 x 4 Bedroom Houses), Associated Car & Cycle Parking,
Refuse Storage, Landscaping & Replacement Boundary
Treatment

Approved:
15/01/2020

P/5116/19

Details pursuant to Condition 8 (Levels) attached to planning
permission P/5680/17 dated 14.6.18 for Redevelopment of
Car Park to provide 20 Three Storey Dwellinghouses (Use
Class C3) (14 x 3 Bedroom Houses & 6 x 4 Bedroom
Houses), Associated Car & Cycle Parking, Refuse Storage,
Landscaping & Replacement Boundary Treatment

Approved:
20/01/2020

P/0017/20

Details pursuant to Condition 22 (Remediation Method
Statement) attached to planning permission P/5680/17 dated
14/06/2018 for Redevelopment of Car Park to provide 20
Three Storey Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) (14 x 3
Bedroom Houses & 6 x 4 Bedroom Houses), Associated Car
& Cycle Parking, Refuse Storage, Landscaping &
Replacement Boundary Treatment

Approved:
15/01/2020

P/1499/20

Details pursuant to condition 11 (materials) attached to
planning permission P/5680/17 dated 21/3/2018 for
redevelopment of car park to provide 20 three storey
dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) (14 x 3 bedroom houses & 6
x 4 bedroom houses), associated car & cycle parking, refuse
storage, landscaping & replacement boundary treatment

Approved:
18/12/2020

P/1500/20

Details pursuant to condition 12 (landscape details) attached
to planning permission P/5680/17 dated 21/3/2018 for
redevelopment of car park to provide 20 three storey
dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) (14 x 3 bedroom houses & 6
x 4 bedroom houses), associated car & cycle parking, refuse
storage, landscaping & replacement boundary treatment

Approved:
12/08/2021

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023

22

Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner




P/1501/20

Details pursuant to condition 18 (external lighting details)
attached to planning permission P/5680/17 dated 21/3/2018
for redevelopment of car park to provide 20 three storey
dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) (14 x 3 bedroom houses & 6
x 4 bedroom houses), associated car & cycle parking, refuse
storage, landscaping & replacement boundary treatment

Approved:
18/08/2022

P/0167/21

Non material amendment to planning permission P/5680/17
dated 21/03/2018 to allow for Updated elevations, with
rationalised window sizes, types and locations; refined
entrances; adjustment of parapet heights and other minor
changes; Increased size of refuse store and change to
enclosing wall construction; Straightening of western fence
line, removal of Leyland Cypress Trees.

Approved:
20/05/2021

P/2208/21

Details pursuant to Conditions 9 (Surface Water Attenuation)
and 10 (Foul Water Drainage) attached to planning
permission P/5680/17 dated 21/3/2018 for redevelopment of
car park to provide 20 three storey dwellinghouses (Use
Class C3) (14 x 3 bedroom houses & 6 x 4 bedroom houses),
associated car & cycle parking, refuse storage, landscaping
& replacement boundary treatment

Approved:
20/12/2021

P/4097/21

Details pursuant to Condition 20 (Biodiversity) and Condition
24 (Water Strategy) attached to planning permission
P/5680/17 Dated 21.3.2018 for Redevelopment of Car Park
to provide 20 Three Storey Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3)
(14 x 3 Bedroom Houses & 6 x 4 Bedroom Houses),
Associated Car & Cycle Parking, Refuse Storage,
Landscaping & Replacement Boundary Treatment

Approved:
24/01/2022

P/1319/22

Details pursuant to conditions 19 (CPZ restrictions) and 21
(parking management plan) attached to planning permission
P/5680/17 dated 21/3/2018 for Redevelopment of Car Park
to provide 20 Three Storey Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3)
(14 x 3 Bedroom Houses & 6 x 4 Bedroom Houses),
Associated Car & Cycle Parking, Refuse Storage,
Landscaping & Replacement Boundary Treatment

Approved:
27/05/2022

P/12268/22

Details pursuant to Condition 14 (Landscaping Management
Plan) attached to planning permission P/5680/17 dated
21.3.2018 for Redevelopment of Car Park to provide 20
Three Storey Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) (14 x 3
Bedroom Houses & 6 x 4 Bedroom Houses), Associated Car
& Cycle Parking, Refuse Storage, Landscaping &
Replacement Boundary Treatment

Approved:
30/06/2022

P/4176/22

Details pursuant to condition 23 (secure by design) attached
to planning permission P/5680/17 dated 15/12/2017 for
Redevelopment of Car Park to provide 20 Three Storey
Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) (14 x 3 Bedroom Houses &
6 x 4 Bedroom Houses), Associated Car & Cycle Parking,
Refuse Storage, Landscaping & Replacement Boundary
Treatment

Approved:
09/12/2022

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023

23

Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner




4.0 CONSULTATION

4.1 An advertisement was run in the Harrow Times on 25/06/2020, and a site notice
was posted at the site on 17/06/2020. A total of 122 letters were sent to adjacent
properties, and the overall public consultation period expired on 16t July 2020.

4.2 One response was received, which stated the following:

= The letter sent is not helpful as it does not explain the meaning or implications
of the amendment to the financial viability mechanism. Have searched under
P/5680/17 and cannot find a permission dated 21/02/2018.

Officer’s repsonse: It is not possible to include the information referred to in the
notification letter; hence officer contact details are included so that residents can
contact the planning officer for information. The second comment references an
incorrect date included in the orignal development description (now corrected).

4.3 Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultation

4.4 The following consultations have been undertaken, together with the responses
received and officer comments:

Planning Policy Officer:
Orignal comments (dated 13.07.2020)

The applicant’s reason for the proposed change is that sales values / build costs details are
required before you can undertake the review, which is fair. However, our interpretation is
that the condition first requires details of the mechanism to be agreed, then the review is
done reflecting the details at an agreed point in time (i.e., 80% occupation).

The details would normally be as per the relevant late-stage review provisions in the GLA
S106 template, but which couldn’t be used in this instance as the applicant was the Council
and therefore the LPA couldn’t enter into a s106 agreement. To include the details /
mechanism in a condition would have meant a very long condition, thus condition required
the mechanism to be submitted for approval. Arguably there is no need to vary the condition.

Should you however be minded to agree with the variation of the condition, then the
proposed 80% occupation trigger is considered too late in the process and as there is the
opportunity for the developer to delay occupation so as to avoid making any potential cash-
in-lieu contribution. Consequently, any revised trigger should ideally be based on Disposal
(sale) of market sale properties — 75% is the typical trigger.

The condition could be tightened to make it explicit when any contribution must be paid, to
10 Working Days of the date the contribution was agreed and cannot occupy more than 85%
per cent of the Residential Units until the contribution has been paid in full to the Council.
Also, point 1 should refer to agreeing rent levels for the affordable rent units (i.e., LAR levels);
and Point 2 is too encompassing re costs — it is only build costs / sales values that should
be included.

Comments dated 7.12.22:

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

24



Under current circumstances, the proposed trigger for the FVA review being 80%
occupancy, followed by submission of the review as a discharge of condition, would be
acceptable.

Should preferably include in the condition that any contribution is payable within 10 days of
the amount being agreed and that no more than 85% of the development can be occupied
until the payment has been received by the LPA.

Housing Officer:
= No comments received

Pinner Association:
=  No comments received

Historic England:
» Not necessary to consult on this applciaiton

5.0 POLICIES
5.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that:

‘If regard is to be had to the Development Plan for the purpose of any
determination to be made under the Planning Acts, the determination must be
made in accordance with the Plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.’

5.2 The Government has issued the National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF
2021] sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these
should be applied, and is a material consideration in the determination of this
application.

5.3 In this instance, the Development Plan comprises The London Plan 2021 [LP]
and the Local Development Framework [LDF]. The LDF comprises The Harrow
Core Strategy 2012 [CS], Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan 2013 [AAP],
the Development Management Policies Local Plan 2013 [DMP], the Site
Allocations Local Plan [SALP] 2013 and Harrow Local Area Map 2013 [LAP].

54 A full list of all the policies used in the consideration of this application is provided
as Informative 1.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

25



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

ASSESSMENT

The main issues are:

Principle of the Development and Affordable Housing
Character, Design, and Conservation

Residential Amenity

Traffic, Parking and Servicing

Lifetime Neighbourhoods

Ecology, Climate Change and Environmental Considerations

Principle of Development and Green Belt
The relevant policies are:

The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

The London Plan (2021): GG1, GG2, GG4, H1, H4, H5, H6, H7, H10, SD6
Local Plan Site Allocations (2013): G04

Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1.1/J

Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM24, DM50

Planning Policy

The principle of the development was previously acceptable and it was
considered that the provision of residential accommodation would make a
valuable contribution towards achieving the borough’s housing targets.

The policy and legislative framework has not materially changed since the original
scheme was approved. As such, no additional consideration regarding the
principle is necessary and only the proposed variations are assessed.

Affordable Housing

The quantity and quality of affordable housing would not be altered. Rather, the
applciaiton seek to amend the timing (trigger) of when certain documents are
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The reason for this is that some of the
data necessary to be submitted would not be available until later stages of
development. It is therefore considred reasonable to amend the timing to a later
stage.

Initial comments from the policy offcier indicated that consideration should be
given to a trigger set at 75% of market sales, which would be ideal. The concern
in setting the trigger to a later point was in the potential for occupation to be
delayed. In this case, the developer is now in the process of securing some of
the mortgage sales on site, so the risk of a delay is low. The trigger point of 80%
was ultimately negotiated and is considred to still be reasonable. The relevant
condition is to be amended to tighten the wording as per recommendations from
the policy officer and vary the timings accordingly.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

26



6.2.6

The proposed amendment would therefore be considered acceptable and would
accord with the relevant planning policies GG1, GG2, GG4, H1, H4, H5, H6, H7
and H10 of the London Plan (2021), policy CS1.1/J of Harrow Local Plan and
policy DM24 of the Harrow Development Management Policies (2013).

Summary

6.2.7 For the reasons set out above, it is considered that the principle of this proposed
variations meets the above policy requirements.

6.3 Character, Design, and Conservation

6.3.1 The relevant policies are:

= The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

= The London Plan (2021): D1, D3, D4, D5, D6, D8, D11, HC1, S4

= Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1.B/D/E/K

= Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM1, DM2, DM3, DM7,
DM12, DM22, DM23, DM27, DM28

6.3.2 The proposal would not be altered in terms of its physical construction, and thus
there would be no impact upon the character and appearance of the development
or its setting; nor would there be any impacts on the Waxwell Lane Conservation
Area.

6.3.3 Similarly, the proposed variation would not affect the development in terms of the
quality of the residential accommodation provided or the residential amenity for
future occupiers.

6.3.4 The orignal report included detailed information on how the development
addressed Lifetime Neighbourhood considerations. These details would be
retained as approved, also.

6.3.5 For the reasons set out above, it is considered that the proposed variation meets
the above policy requirements.

6.4 Neighbouring Residential Amenity

6.4.1 The relevant policies are:

= The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)
= Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1
= Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM1

6.4.2 The development would not be altered in terms of its physical structures or
associated landscaping, nor in terms of number of proposed dwellings, outdoor
play space, servicing, or lighting. Thus, the proposed variation would not result in
any changes to impacts on neighbouring residentail amenities, either in terms of
overshadowing and visual impacts, or noise and disturbance.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

27



6.4.3

For the reasons set out above, it is considered that the proposed variation meets
the above policy requirements.

6.4.4 In conclusion, it is considered that the revised proposal would not result in any
undue impacts on residential amenity for neighbouring occupiers, and thus would
comply with the relevant policies with regard to residential amenity.

6.5 Traffic, Parking and Servicing

6.5.1 The relevant policies are:

= The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

= The London Plan (2021): T1, T4, T5, T6

= Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1.R

= Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM42, DM43, DM44,
DM45, DM50

6.5.2 The layout of the site would not be altered, nor would the car parking proposed
or arrangements for servicing be changed. The proposed variation would
therefore not result in any impacts to Highways matters.

6.5.3 For the reasons set out above, it is considered that the proposed variation meets
the above policy requirements.

6.6 Ecology, Climate Change and Environmental Considerations

6.6.1 The relevant policies are:
= The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)
= The London Plan (2021): G1, G5, G6, G7, Sl 1, Sl 2, SI 5, SI 13, D14
= Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1.T
= Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM10, DM12, DM14,

DM15, DM20, DM21, DM22, DM50

6.6.2 The officer's report for the permission ref: P/5680/17 detailed the proposal’'s
impacts in terms of loss of trees and landscaping including the provision of new
trees and opportunities to enhance the biodiversity of the site. Environmental
matters comprising flood risk, air quality, noise and vibration and contaminated
land were addressed, as were details of sustainability and cardon dioxide
emissions reduction measures. The proposed variation would have no impacts
on any of the above elements.

6.6.3 For the reasons set out above, it is considered that the proposed variation meets
the above policy requirements.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

28



7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

Checked

CONCLUSION AND REASONS FOR APPROVAL

The revised condition would result in no material changes to the form and impacts
of the development in terms of character and quality of accommodation,
residential amenity, traffic and highways matters or matters pertaining to
environmental and sustainability considerations. However, it would allow for the
submission of information pertinent to affordable housing on site to be submitted
for approval to the Local Planning Authority at a more appropriate time than
currently required. The proposed variation is therefore considered to be
reasonable and appropriate.

For these reasons, weighing up the development plan policies and proposals,
and other material considerations including comments received in response to
notification and consultation as set out above, this revised application is
recommended for grant.

Accordingly, the list of conditions and informatives under Appendix 1 is amended
to reflect the fact that details to most of the non-operational conditions have been
approved, thus further submission of details is not necessary. Operational
conditions are carried over from the orignal permission as is.

6%““9 RS

Mehdi Rezaie Viv Evans _
Head of Development Management (Interim) | Chief Planning Officer

21st December 2022 21st December 2022

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

29




APPENDIX 1: Conditions and Informatives
Conditions

1 Time Limit 3 years - Full Permission *

The development permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of the original permission P/5680/17 dated 14/06/2018.

REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

2 Approved Drawing and Documents *

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, the development
shall be carried out, retained, and completed in accordance with the following
approved drawings and documents:

Approved Plans and Documents:

Drawings: 00-00 Rev P1; 00-01 Rev P1; 03-10 Rev P1; 10-01 Rev P1; 10-02 Rev
P1; 10-03 Rev P1; 10-04 Rev P1; 10-10 Rev P1; 10-11 Rev P1; 10-12 Rev P1; 20-
10 Rev P1; 20-11 Rev P1; 20-12 Rev P1; 20-13 Rev P1; 20-14 Rev P1; 20-15 Rev
P1; 20-16 Rev P1; 20-17 Rev P1; 30-10 Rev P1 Supporting Documents: Design &
Access Statement dated 07/12/2017; Planning Statement dated 15th December
2017; Waxwell Lane Car Park Historic Environmental Assessment dated November
2017; Air Impact Assessment (ref: 775859-MLM-ZZ-XX-RP-J-0001); Acoustic
Design Report; Waxwell Lane Utility Statement; Arboricultural Impact Assessment
& Method Statement dated November 2017; Daylight and Sunlight Statement
(Revision 3.0 - 06/12/2017); Transport Statement dated December 2017; Energy
and Sustainability Statement Revision 3.2 dated 07/12/2017; Phase Il Geotechnical
& Geo-Environmental Investigation Ref: LS 3147 dated 30th November 2017;
Waxwell Lane; Development - Financial Viability Assessment Dated December
2017.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3 Quantum of Wheelchair Homes **

Unit 1 of the Discounted Market Rent Units shall be constructed and completed to
Building Regulation standard M4(3)(2)(b) of the Building Regulations 2010 (as
amended).

REASON: To ensure the development provides accessible homes for all users.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

30



4 Part M dwellings *

Units 1 and 7 shall be built in accordance with Building Regulation standard M4 (3)
'Wheelchair User Dwellings'. All other residential units in this development, as
detailed in the submitted and approved drawings, shall be built to Building
Regulation Standard M4 (2) 'Accessible and adaptable dwellings'. The
development shall be thereafter retained to those standards.

REASON: To ensure provision of "Wheelchair and Accessible and adaptable'
housing.

5. Refuse Collection *

The refuse bins shall be stored at all times in the designated refuse storage area,
as shown on the approved drawing plans.

REASON: To enhance the appearance of the development and safeguard the
character and appearance of the area.

6. Storage *
The residential premises hereby approved shall each be provided with a storage

space in accordance with the Mayor of London's Housing SPG (2016) unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

REASON: To ensure that the development achieves a high standard of residential
quality for future occupiers of the development.

7. Construction Method Statement and Logistics Plan *

All development shall take place in accordance with the Construction Method
Statement & Logistics Plan details approved under application P/5111/19 dated
14/01/2020 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

REASON: To ensure that measures are put in place to manage and reduce noise
and vibration impacts during demolition and construction and to safeguard the
amenity of neighbouring occupiers and to ensure that the transport network impact
of demolition and construction work associated with the development is managed
and that measures are agreed and in place to manage and reduce dust, noise and
vibration during the demolition and construction phases of the development and
manage transport impacts during the demolition and construction phases of the
development.

8. Levels*

The levels of the building(s), road(s) and footpath(s) in relation to the adjoining land
and highway(s), and any other changes in the level of the site, shall be carried out
in accordance with the details approved under application P/5116/19 dated
20/01/2020 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, and
shall be retained as such thereafter

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

31



REASON: To ensure that the works are carried out at suitable levels in relation to
the highway and adjoining properties in the interests of the amenity of neighbouring
residents, the appearance of the development, drainage, gradient of access and
future highway improvement.

9. Surface Water Drainage and Attenuation *

The works for the disposal of surface water, including surface water attenuation
and storage shall be implemented in accordance with the details approved under
application P/2208/21 dated 20/12/2021 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
local planning authority, and shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To ensure that the development achieves an appropriate greenfield
runoff rate in this critical drainage area and to ensure that sustainable urban
drainage measures are exploited.

10. Foul Water Drainage *

The foul water drainage works shall be implemented in accordance with the details
approved under application P/2208/21 dated 20/12/2021 unless otherwise agreed
in writing by the local planning authority, and shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To ensure that there would be adequate infrastructure in place for the
disposal of foul water arising from the development.

11. Materials *

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the buildings
as well as the boundary fencing including all pedestrian/ access gates and waste
storage, shall be implemented in accordance with the details approved under
application P/1499/20 dated 18/12/2020 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
local planning authority, and shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To safeguard the appearance of the locality and to ensure a
satisfactory form of development.

12. Landscape Strategy *

The hard and soft landscaping of the development shall be implemented in
accordance with the details approved under application P/1500/20 dated
12/08/2021 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, and
shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To ensure that the development makes provision for hard and soft
landscaping which contributes to the creation of a high quality, accessible, safe and
attractive public realm and to ensure a high standard of design, layout and amenity.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

32



13. Landscape Implementation *

All hard landscaping shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the
development or in accordance with a programme that has been submitted to the
Local Planning Authority in writing to be agreed. All soft landscaping works
including planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved scheme of
landscaping shall be carried out no later than the first planting and seeding season
following the final occupation of the residential parts of the buildings, or the
completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any existing or new trees
or shrubs which, within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development,
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged, diseased or defective, shall be
replaced in the next planting season, with others of a similar size and species,
unless the local authority agrees any variation in writing.

REASON: To safeguard the appearance and character of the area, and to
enhance the appearance of the development.

14. Landscape Management Plan *

All on-going management and maintenance of all the hard and soft landscaping
within the development, other than small, privately owned, domestic gardens, shall
be implemented in accordance with the details approved under application
P/2268/22 dated 30/06/2022 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local
planning authority, and shall be retained as such thereafter.

The Landscape Management Plan shall be carried out in a timely manner as
approved.

REASON: To ensure that the development makes provision for hard and soft
landscaping which contributes (i) to the creation of a high quality, accessible, safe
and attractive public realm and (ii) to the enhancement, creation and management
of biodiversity.

15. Archaeology *

The development herein approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
statement of significance and research objectives / methodology of site
investigation and the programme for post-investigation assessment and
subsequent analysis, publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting
material as per the details approved under application P/5119/19 dated 14/01/2020
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

REASON: To ensure that any artefacts of archaeological interests on the site are
not prejudiced and the records of the investigation are deposited for historical
record keeping.

16. Trees*

The development hereby permitted, in so far it relates to measures to protect trees
shown to be retained on the Landscaping Strategy required by condition 12 during
construction shall be undertaken in accordance with the recommendations of the
Arboricultural Impact Assessment & Method Statement dated November 2017.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

33



This will include that arboricultural supervision is undertaken throughout the project
and the development shall be carried out in accordance with the recommendations
of the Arboricultural Survey. The tree protection measures shall be erected before
any equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site for the purposes
of the development, and shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and
surplus materials have been removed from the site.

Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this
condition, and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall
any excavation be made, without the written consent of the local planning authority.

REASON: The existing trees represent an important amenity feature which the
local planning authority considers should be protected.

17. Noise mitigation *

The development hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance with the
noise mitigation and ventilation details approved under application P/5120/19 dated
14/01/2020 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, and
shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To ensure that potential adverse noise impacts to residential premises
within the development are mitigated in accordance.

18. External Lighting Strateqy *

The lighting of all public realm and other external areas (including buildings) within
the site shall be implemented in accordance with the details approved under
application P/1501/20 dated 18/08/2022 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
local planning authority, and shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To ensure that the development incorporates lighting that contributes to
Secured by Design principles and achieves a high standard of residential quality.

19. CPZ restrictions **

The arrangements to ensure that, with the exception of disabled persons, no
resident of the development shall obtain a resident's parking permit within the
Controlled Parking Zone, including the details of the residential tenancy
management programme which includes information informing residents they are
not eligible for a resident's parking permit, shall be implemented as per the details
approved under application P/1319/22 dated 27/05/2022 unless otherwise agreed
in writing by the local planning authority, and shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To encourage sustainable modes of travel and ensure the
surrounding road network does not experience undue levels of parking stress.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

34



20. Biodiversity *

The bat and nest boxes to be provided within the site shall be implemented in
accordance with the details approved under application P/4097/21 dated
24/01/2022 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, and
shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To ensure that the development makes appropriate provision for the
protection, enhancement, creation and management of biodiversity.

21. Parking Management Plan *

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the
Parking Management Plan details approved under application P/1319/22 dated
27/05/2022 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, and
shall be retained as such thereafter.

REASON: To ensure that the development provides sufficient electric vehicle
charging points and adequate, secure and (where appropriate) weather protected
cycle parking.

22. Land Contamination *

The development herein permitted shall be carried out in accordance with details
approved under application P/0017/20 dated 15/01/2020 for land contamination
management and disposal, remediation and data-collection and monitoring.

REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers

23. Secure by Design *

The approved details relating to the Secure by Design Accreditation obtained for
the development, as per details approved under application P/4176/22 dated
09/12/2022, shall be retained on site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local
planning authority.

REASON: In the interests of creating safer and more sustainable communities and
to safeguard amenity by reducing the risk of crime and the fear of crime.

24. Water Strategy *

The Water Strategy, which demonstrating that the mains water consumption of the
proposed development will not exceed 105 litres per person per day (excluding an
allowance of 5 litres or less per person per day for external water consumption),
shall be implemented in accordance with the details approved under application
P/4097/21 dated 24/01/2022 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local
planning authority, and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

35



REASON: To ensure that the proposed development has an acceptable impact on
water network.

25. Restrict Permitted Development Rights *

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that
order with or without modification), no development which would otherwise fall
within Classes A, B, C, D, E and F in Part 1 of Schedule 2 to that Order shall be
carried out in relation to the dwellinghouses hereby permitted without the prior
written permission of the local planning authority.

REASON: To safeguard the character of the area by restricting the amount of site
coverage and size of dwelling in relation to the size of the plot and availability of
amenity space and to safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residents'.

26. Glazing — Obscured *

The windows in the first floor north flank elevations of the proposed units 1 and 20
shall: (a) be of purpose made obscure glass, (b) be permanently fixed closed below
a height of 1.7m above finished floor level, and shall thereafter be retained in that
form.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residents in accordance with
policy DM1 of the Development Management Policies Local Plan 2013.

27. Financial Viability Review Mechanism **

This permission shall have the effect of varying condition 27 on planning permission
P/5680/17 dated 14/06/2018:

An Affordable Housing Scheme for the site shall be submitted to, and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to the development herein approved
exceeding 80% occupation of market sale properties. The Affordable Housing
Scheme shall include:

1. The location of four affordable homes at the site (two for affordable rent and two
in an intermediate tenure) and agreement on the rent levels for the affordable
rent units (i.e., LAR levels); and

2. Details of a Financial Viability Review Mechanism (FVRM). The FVRM shall set
out the process whereby a fully open book approach to development costs and
values (i.e., build costs / sales values) respectively incurred and received (or
projected to be incurred or received) by the developer will be adopted in order
to determine whether a financial contribution towards off-site affordable housing
provision should and can be made and if a contribution should and can be made,
what that contribution should be; and

3. Details of how any financial contribution identified as being required through the
FVRM will be provided by way of a commuted sum to provide affordable housing

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

36



off-site.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Affordable
Housing Scheme, and any financial contribution identified as being required as a
result of the FVRM shall be paid in full within 10 Working Days of the date the
contribution was agreed and not prior to the occupancy of more than 85% per cent
of the Residential Units, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

REASON: In order to secure the maximum reasonable affordable housing units
and/or construction and secure the public benefit thereof.

28. Legal Agreement Required *

In the event that any owners of the land have the legal locus to enter into a Section
106 Agreement, no works (or no further works if development has commenced)
shall be commenced on site until such time as they have entered into such an
Agreement incorporating obligations in respect of the matters covered by conditions
marked with ** in the planning permission granted on 21/03/17 (Harrow Reference
P/5680/17) and those obligations shall apply to all conditions above marked with **
which supersede those of permission P/5680/17.

REASON: In order to define the permission and to secure development in
accordance with policy DM50 of the Harrow Development Management Policies
Local Plan 2013.

29. Affordable Housing and Viability Review **

Within three months of the date of this permission or such extended time as may
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the following details shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority:

1. A comprehensive and detailed review of the Affordable Housing provision
on site

2. A comprehensive and detailed review of the ‘Financial Viability Review
Mechanism’

The development shall be implemented and maintained as agreed thereafter.
REASON: To ensure the Affordable Housing provided on site is satisfactory and

the maximum reasonable affordable housing has been achieved to secure the
public benefit thereof.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

37



Informatives

1.

Policies

The following policies and guidance are relevant to this decision:

National Planning Policy and Guidance:
National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

The London Plan (2021): GG1, GG2, GG4, H1, H4, H5, H6, H7, H10, SD6, D1,
D3, D4, D5, D6, D8, D11, D14, HC1, S4, G1, G5, G6, G7, Sl 1, Sl 2, SI 5, SI 13,
T1, T4, T5, T6

Local Plan Site Allocations (2013): G04

Harrow Core Strategy (2012):CS1

Development Management Policies Local Plan (2013): DM1, DM2, DM3, DM7,
DM10, DM12, DM13, DM14, DM15, DM21, DM22, DM23, DM24, DM27, DM28,
DM42, DM43, DM44, DM45, DM50

Pre-application engagement

Statement under Article 35(2) of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedures) (England) Order 2015. This decision has been taken in
accordance with paragraphs 39-42 of The National Planning Policy Framework.
Pre-application advice was sought and provided and the submitted application was
in accordance with that advice.

Wheelchair Homes

The applicant is encouraged to liaise with the Council during the construction of the
development to ensure, insofar as possible, that the wheelchair homes are fitted-
out to meet the needs of their first occupiers.

Thames Water Approval

Approval should be sought from Thames Water where erection of a building or
underpinning work would be over the line of, or within 3m of a public sewer.

Traffic Order
The relevant traffic order will impose a restriction making residential occupiers of
this building ineligible for resident's parking permits in the surrounding controlled

parking zone.

GLA CIL Liability

Please be advised that this application attracts a liability payment of £81,567.50 of
Community Infrastructure Levy. This charge has been levied under Greater London
Authority CIL charging schedule and s211 of the Planning Act 2008.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

38



Harrow Council as CIL collecting authority upon the grant of planning permission
will be collecting the Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). Your proposal
is subject to a CIL Liability Notice indicating a levy of £64,893.50 (provisional) for
the application, based on the levy rate for Harrow of £35/sqm.

7 Harrow CIL Liability

Harrow has a Community Infrastructure Levy which will apply Borough wide for
certain uses of over 100sgm gross internal floor space. The CIL has been examined
by the Planning Inspectorate and found to be legally compliant. It will be charged
from the 1st October 2013. Any planning application determined after this date will
be charged accordingly.

Harrow's Charges are:

Residential (Use Class C3) - £110 per sqm,;

Hotels (Use Class C1), Residential Institutions except Hospitals, (Use Class C2),
Student Accommodation, Hostels and HMOs (Sui generis)- £55 per sqm;

Retail (Use Class A1), Financial & Professional Services (Use Class A2),
Restaurants and Cafes (Use Class A3) Drinking Establishments (Use Class A4)
Hot Food Takeaways (Use Class A5) - £100 per sqm

All other uses - Nil.

The Harrow CIL Liability for this development is: £203,951.00 (provisional)

8 Affordable Housing Definitions

Required definitions (e.g., discounted market rent; market rent) will be detailed
within the shadow S106 legal agreement.

9. Carbon Off-set Contribution

The applicant is advised that notwithstanding the details contained within the
Energy & Sustainability assessment, a carbon-offset contribution of £46,584.00
shall be paid to the relevant department of the Council prior to the commencement
of the development. Should the final energy calculations submitted to the Council
demonstrate that the carbon emissions from the residential element of the scheme
exceeds 25.88 tonnes per annum, an additional carbon-offset contribution shall be
paid to the Council at a rate of £1,800 per tonne of carbon in excess of 25.88 tonnes
emitted from the scheme.

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

39



This page has been left intentionally blank

Planning Committee 18t Jan 2023 Waxwell Lane Car Park, Waxwell Lane, Pinner

40



Aaenda Item 12.(a)
Pages 41 to 52

Agenda Item: 2/01

o = application site

22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX P/3789/22

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

41



1:1250

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

42



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW
PLANNING COMMITTEE
18th January 2023

APPLICATION NUMBER:  P/3789/22

VALID DATE: 02/11/2022

LOCATION: 22 HAWTHORN DRIVE, HARROW
WARD: NORTH HARROW

POSTCODE: HA2 7NX

APPLICANT: MR G ALI

AGENT: KDA DESIGNS LTD

CASE OFFICER: HAYDEN PARKER

EXPIRY DATE: 28/12/2022

EXTENSION OF TIME: N/A
PROPOSAL

CERTIFICATE OF LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT (PROPOSED): Alterations and extension to
roof to form end gable; rear dormer; two rooflights in front roof slope; window in end gable.

RECOMMENDATION
The Planning Committee is asked to:
1) Agree the reasons for approval as set out in this report, and

2) Grant certificate of lawful proposed development

REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION

The proportions of the extension are considered acceptable by default on both character
and residential amenity grounds by virtue of compliance with Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B
& C of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order
2015 (as amended).

INFORMATION

This application is reported to Planning Committee as it regards land in which a member
has an interest and therefore falls within proviso C. (iii) of the Scheme of Delegation.

Statutory Return Type: Certificate of Proposed Lawful Development.
Council Interest: None
Net additional volume: 46.58sgm

GLA Community Infrastructure Levy N/A
(CIL) Contribution (provisional):
Local CIL requirement: N/A

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

43



1.0

SITE DESCRIPTION

1.1 The subject site features a two-storey semi-detached dwellinghouse. The dwelling
features a single width porch extension with a flat roof. The site features parking
within the front forecourt and a garden in the rear.

1.2 The adjoining semi is No. 24 Hawthorn Drive. The building is similar in appearance
aside from the garage, which has undergone alterations since the original building
was constructed. Alike the subject site, No. 24 features parking within the front
forecourt.

1.3 No. 22a Hawthorn Drive abuts the subject site in the east. The site features a single
storey semi-detached dwelling. There is a large powerline in the rear garden of the
site, which spans into the adjoining property at No. 20 Hawthorn Drive.

1.4 The subject site is not a listed building or located within a conservation area.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 Alterations and extension to roof to form end gable: rear dormer. The rear dormer
extension seeks a maximum height from the existing roof form of 2.57m and a
depth of 3.6m. Two rooflights are also proposed to be located within the front roof
slope and a window in the end gable.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

LBH/43966 |Single storey rear and front porch extensions Grant: 13/12/1991

3.1 Site History Context

3.2 There is no relevant history to the site that aligns with the proposal.

40 CONSULTATION

4.1 The application is for a certificate of proposed lawful development, whereby

consultation to adjoining properties is not required.

4.2  Statutory and non-statutory consultation

4.3  No internal or external consultees were consulted on the application.

5.0 POLICIES

5.1 Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B & C of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

44



6.0

6.1

6.2
6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.2.7

6.2.8

7.0
7.1

ASSESSMENT

The main issues are:

" Compliance with Class B — Additions etc to the roof
. Compliance with Class C - Other alterations to the roof of a dwellinghouse

Compliance with permitted development (Classes B and C)
The relevant policies are:

. Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B & C of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).

The proposed hip to gable and rear dormer roof extension would have a volume of
46.58 cubic metres and is therefore within the 50 cubic metres limit for the
enlargement of the roofs of semi-detached dwellinghouses. The proposed dormer
would be set 200mm up the rear roof slope from the eaves of the original roof.

The proposed roof extensions would not at any point exceed the highest point of the
existing roof. The proposed roof extensions would not project forward of any roof
slope which forms the principal elevation of the dwellinghouse and fronts a highway.

The proposed roof extensions would not include the provision of a veranda, balcony
or raised platform or the installation, alteration or replacement of a chimney, flue or
soil, vent pipe, solar photovoltaic or solar thermal equipment.

The materials to be used in any exterior work shall be of a similar appearance to
those used in the construction of the exterior of the existing dwellinghouse.

The proposed roof extensions would be built entirely within the curtilage of the
property. There are no planning conditions removing permitted development rights
or any other relevant developments on the land.

The proposed window to the staircase will be obscured and will not be openable
below 1.7m above floor level (C.2 (i) & (ii)).

The proposed end gable and rear dormer are within the tolerances of Classes B &
C of Schedule 2, Part 1 of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 as amended by The Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended). The
proposal is therefore a lawful development.

CONCLUSION AND REASONS FOR APPROVAL

Officers are satisfied that the overall design of the extension, proposed external
finishes and fenestration arrangements would not unduly detract from the character
and appearance of the host dwelling, street scene and area in a wider context.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

45



7.2 The proposal sought is consistent with the requirements of Schedule 2, Part 1,
Classes B & C of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
(England) Order 2015 (as amended) and is therefore lawful.

APPENIDIX 1: CONDITIONS AND INFORMATIVES

Conditions

1. The proposal would be within the tolerances of Schedule 2, Part 1 Classes B & C of
The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order
2015 (as amended).

2. The proposal is therefore a lawful development

Informatives:

1. The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirements in the Considerate Contractor
Code of Practice. In the interests of minimising any adverse effects arising from
building operations, the limitations on hours of working are as follows:

. 0800-1800 hours Monday - Friday (not including Bank Holidays)
. 0800-1300 hours Saturday.

2. The Party Wall etc. Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify and obtain formal
agreement from adjoining owner(s) where the building owner intends to carry out
building work which involves:

1. work on an existing wall shared with another property;

2.  building on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

3. excavating near a neighbouring building, and that work falls within the scope
of the Act.

Procedures under this Act are quite separate from the need for planning permission
or building regulations approval.

"The Party Wall etc. Act 1996: explanatory booklet" is available free of charge from:
Communities and Local Government Publications, PO Box 236, Wetherby, LS23
7NB

Please quote Product code: 02 BR 00862 when ordering.

Also available for download from the Portal website:
https://www.gov.uk/party-wall-etc-act-1996-quidance

3. You should be aware that, whereas a planning permission is valid for three years, a
Certificate is only valid for as long as the permitted development legislation that gave
rise to the decision remains in place. This could mean that, if the legislation changes
after the Certificate was determined, your proposals may no longer be permitted
development. In this case this Certificate decision was based on the revised
permitted development rights for householders that the Government brought into
effect on 15 April 2015.

For further advice on the current householder permitted development guidance an
interactive guide is available on the Planning Portal on:
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/permission/house

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

46


https://www.gov.uk/party-wall-etc-act-1996-guidance
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/permission/house

4. The applicant is advised to ensure that the highway is not interfered with or
obstructed at any time during the execution of any works on land adjacent to a
highway. The applicant is liable for any damage caused to any footway, footpath,
grass verge, vehicle crossing, carriageway or highway asset. Please report any
damage to nrswa@harrow.gov.uk or telephone 020 8424 1884 where assistance
with the repair of the damage is available, at the applicant’s expense. Failure to
report any damage could result in a charge being levied against the property.

5. The applicant is advised that this Certificate is issued on the basis that the submitted
plans and information are a true representation of the site circumstances and on the
assumption that the property is in use as a single family dwellinghouse. If later this
information turns out to be incorrect, then the basis of this Certificate may be
challenged and the development could be liable to enforcement action.

6. The applicant is advised that the Drainage Authority in Harrow recommends the
submission for their approval of a drainage plan indicating all surface and foul water
connections and their outfall details. Please also note that separate systems are
used in Harrow for surface water and foul water discharge. Please email
infrastructure@harrow.gov.uk with your plans.

Checked
Mehdi Rezaie Viv Evans

Head of Development Management (Interim) | Chief Planning Officer

22nd December 2022 22" December 2022

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

a7


mailto:infrastructure@harrow.gov.uk

APPENDIX 2: LOCATION PLAN

1:1250

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

48



APPENDIX 3: PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

49



Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

50



This page has been left intentionally blank

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 22 Hawthorn Drive, Harrow, HA2 7NX

51



This page is intentionally left blank



Aaenda Item 12.(b)
Pages 53 to 80

Agenda Item : 2/02

o = application site

77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB P/3574/22

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

53



LOCATION PLAN

-
f’}-“'-trl.-@_
&7
&
& LB
2
I'Ej
¢ -
F
F ™
8
s
P
£ .
' g
I ™~ <
-
.
~—
S
-,
e

i

as

134

01-0 SITE LOCATION PLAM [1:500)

77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

54

Planning Committee 18t January 2023



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW

PLANNING COMMITTEE

18th January 2023
APPLICATION NUMBER: P/3574/22
VALIDATE DATE: 18/10/2022
LOCATION: 77 HIILVIEW ROAD
WARD: HATCH END
POSTCODE: HA5 4PB
APPLICANT: MR & MRS MANGA
AGENT: TEN POINT FIVE ARCHITECTURE
CASE OFFICER: CATRIONA COOKE
EXPIRY DATE: 08/12/2022

PROPOSAL
Redevelopment to provide two x two storey (4 bed) semi-detached dwelling houses with

habitable roofspaces; proposed vehicle access; separate amenity space; bin and cycle
stores (Retrospective)

RECOMMENDATION

The Planning Committee is asked to:

1) Agree the reasons for approval as set out in this report, and
2) Grant planning permission subject to the conditions listed in Appendix 1 of this
report:

REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

The development as constructed has an acceptable impact on the character and
appearance of the area.

Accordingly, weighing up the development plan policies and proposals along with other
material considerations including comments received in response to notification and
consultation as set out below, Officers consider and conclude that, subject to planning
conditions, the proposed development is acceptable and worthy of support. In accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework, including its presumption in favour of
sustainable development, and subject to conditions, officers recommend that the application
is approved.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

55



INFORMATION

This application is reported to Planning Committee at the request of a nominated member
in the public interest and therefore falls within provision A of the Scheme of Delegation.

Statutory Return Type: E13 Minor Dwellings
Council Interest: N/A

Net additional Floorspace: 52 sqgm

GLA Community Infrastructure Levy N/A

(CIL) Contribution (provisional):

Local CIL requirement: N/A

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the
processing of the application and the preparation of this report.

EQUALITIES

In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its equalities obligations
including its obligations under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

For the purposes of this application there are no adverse equalities issues.

S17 CRIME & DISORDER ACT

Policy D11 of the London Plan (2021) and Policy DM1 of the Development Management
Polices Local Plan require all new developments to have regard to safety and the measures
to reduce crime in the design of development proposal. It is considered that the development
does not adversely affect crime risk. However, a condition was not imposed on the appeal
scheme and therefore it would be unreasonable for a condition to be attached.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

56



1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

1.1. The site contains a recently completed pair of semi-detached properties located on
the southeastern side of Hillview Road.

1.2. The site has a maximum width of 15.20m and a maximum depth of 48.8m. The
footprint of the site is 721.52sq m.

1.3. The site is set within a row of residential dwellinghouses, with semi-detached
houses interspersed with detached houses to the north and to the south. The
neighbour immediately to the south is No. 79 Hillview Road, with No. 75 Hillview
Road to the north. The character of the area is varied.

14. The site is located in a Critical Drainage Area and has no other statutory
designations.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 The application seeks retrospective permission for the development as built on site.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.1 A summary of the relevant planning application history is set out in the table below:

Ref no.

Description

Status & date of
decision

P/3331/16

Re-development to provide a pair of semi-detached two storey
dwellings with habitable roofspace; new vehicular access
parking bin / cycle storage landscaping and boundary
treatments

Refused
03/10/2016

Appeal Allowed
10/02/2017

P/1982/17

Details pursuant to Conditions 3 (Materials) and 4 (Boundary
Treatment) attached to planning permission P/3331/16 allowed
on appeal reference APP/M5450MW/16/3161002  dated
10/2/17 for Re-development to provide a pair of semi-detached
two storey dwellings with habitable roofspace; new vehicular
access parking bin / cycle storage landscaping and boundary
treatments

Approved
07/07/2017

P/1391/20

CERTIFICATE OF LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT (PROPOSED):
Alterations to roof to form end gable, rear dormer and insertion
of three rooflights on front roofslope; Front porch; Single storey
side extensions to both sides; Two storey rear extension

Refused
15/06/2020

Reasons for refusal:

1. The cubic content of the resulting roof space would exceed the cubic content of the original roof space
by more than 50 cubic meters. The proposal would therefore not be within the tolerances of Schedule

Planning Committee 18t January 2023

57

77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB




2, Part 1 Class B.1(d)(ii) of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England)
Order 2015 (as amended).

2. The proposal is NOT therefore a lawful development.

P/0368/20 | Lawful implementation of planning permission P/3331/16 | Granted
(construction of pair of semi-detached two storey dwellings with | 20/04/2020
habitable roofspace (2 x 4 beds); new vehicular access parking
bin / cycle storage landscaping and boundary treatments)
allowed on appeal APP/M5450/W/16/3161002

P/3564/22 | Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) attached to planning | Under assessment
permission P/3331/16 allowed on appeal reference
APP/M5450/W/16/3161002 to allow alterations to elevations

4.0 CONSULTATION

4.1 A total of 41 consultation letters were sent to neighbouring properties regarding
this application. A total of 9 responses were received.

4.2 A site notice was posted on 14 November 2022 expiring on 5" December 2022.

4.3 A summary of the consultation responses received along with the Officer
comments are set out in the table below: -

= A total of 16 violations should not be allowed as will set a precedent for other
developers.

Officer comment: Section 73 of the Planning Act allows a developer to submit an

application for retrospective planning permission without complying with the original

permission, as is the case under this application. The LPA is required to determine such

application as it would for a new application in accordance with the relevant development

in place at the time the application has been made.

= Materials are out of keeping with surrounding area

Officer comment: See 6.3. below

» Front gables inconsistent with neighbouring properties.

Officer comment: See 6.3.6 below

» Windowpanes of bay window inconsistent with first floor window

Officer comment: See 6.3.5 below

= The brick panel reduction in front elevation is an improvement but the two vertical full
height drainpipes have become an unsightly feature.

Officer comment: See 6.3.4 below

» The cycle storage, waste bin storage, box tree hedging separating the grass at the front
and low level brick wall along the boundary with pavement have not yet been
completed.

Officer comment: See 6.3.14 below

Consultee and Summary of Comments

Hatch End Association
= The Hatch End Association is very concerned that developers are willing to ignore
the planning regime when it suits them, and approval of this application is likely to
encourage others to follow suit. The Hatch End Association seeks to preserve the

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

58



essential character of Hatch End and sees no reason that blatant ignoring of the
rules should be allowed.

Landscape Officer

No comments received

5.0 POLICIES

5.1  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that:

‘If regard is to be had to the Development Plan for the purpose of any determination
to be made under the Planning Acts, the determination must be made in accordance
with the Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.’

5.2 The Government has issued the National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF 2021]
sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these should be
applied, and is a material consideration in the determination of this application.

5.3 In this instance, the Development Plan comprises The London Plan 2021 [LP] and
the Local Development Framework [LDF]. The LDF comprises The Harrow Core
Strategy 2012 [CS], Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan 2013 [AAP], the
Development Management Policies Local Plan 2013 [DMP], the Site Allocations
Local Plan [SALP] 2013 and Harrow Local Area Map 2013 [LAP].

5.4  Afulllist of all the policies used in the consideration of this application is provided as
Informative 1.

6.0 ASSESSMENT

6.1 The main issues are:

» Principle of the Development
= Design, Character, and Appearance of the Area
= Residential Amenity
= Traffic and Parking
» Waste and Servicing
* Flood Risk and Drainage
= Biodiversity
» Fire Safety
6.2 Principle of Development
The relevant policies are:
» The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)
» The London Plan (2021): H1, H2, H9
» Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM24
= Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1
Planning Committee 18" January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

59




= Supplementary Planning Document — Garden Land Development (2013)

6.2.1  The principle of the development has been established in the appeal allowed under
reference APP/M5450/W/16/3161002. As such, matters relating to the principle of
the development, the size of accommodation proposed, transport impacts,
landscaping and fire safety do not need to be considered under this application
again as these elements would remain unchanged from the original approval.

6.3 Design, Character, and Appearance of the Area
The relevant policies are:

National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

The London Plan 2021: D3

Harrow Core Strategy 2012: CS1

Harrow Development Management Polices Local Plan (2013): DM1, DM22, DM23
Residential Design Guide (2010)

The London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016)

Code of Practice for Storage and Collection of Refuse and Materials for Recycling
in Domestic Properties (2016)

6.3.1 Policy D3.D(1) of the London Plan states that development should in terms of form
and layout, enhance local context by delivering buildings and spaces that positively
respond to local distinctiveness through their layout, orientation, scale, appearance,
and shape, with due regard to existing and emerging street hierarchy, building types,
forms, and proportions. Policy D3.D(11) goes on to states that in terms of quality
and character, developments should respond to the existing character of a place by
identifying the special and valued features and characteristics that are unique to the
locality and respect, enhance and utilise the heritage assets and architectural
features that contribute towards the local character.

6.3.2 Policy DM1 of the DMP gives advice that “all development proposals must achieve
a high standard of design and layout. Proposals which fail to achieve a high standard
of design and layout, or which are detrimental to local character and appearance,
will be resisted”.

6.3.3 As noted above the development has been largely completed on site. The
development is to the same footprint and scale as the approved plans. In allowing
the appeal the Inspector did not include a condition restricting permitted
development rights for the dwellings. This application seeks to retrospective
permission to retain the dwellings as constructed on site. A number of changes
were made during the construction of the dwellinghouses which are addressed
below.

6.3.4 Reduction of Brick panel on the front elevation to one brick width

It is considered that this element of the development by reducing the 1.8m wide
brick panel as approved to a 0.2m wide panel is an improvement to the approved
plans creating a more visually cohesive design. It is noted that objections have been

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

60



6.3.5

6.3.6

6.3.7

6.3.8

6.3.9

6.3.10

6.3.11

received relating to the visually prominent down pipes. However, these are normal
features of properties in the area. Therefore, it is considered that this element has
an acceptable impact on the character of the area.

Centralised Bay window/first floor windows centralised to bay window

This amendment is considered to be minor and in centralising the bay windows and
first floor windows the development has a balanced frontage which is in keeping
with the area.

Reduction in width of front gable to match the width of the first-floor windows.

As noted by the Inspector in allowing the appeal, the area is mixed in character and
appearance. While reduction in width of the front gables is a significant variation to
the approved plans, it is considered that given the varied character of the area this
element does not have a negative impact on the character of the area.

Removal of pitched roof over bay windows

There are examples within the area of single storey front extension with flat roofs.
It is considered that this is a minor change which does not have a harmful impact
on the character of the area. Furthermore, as noted above the Appeal Decision
does not remove permitted development right and it is considered that the pitched
roofs could be removed under Class A of the General Permitted Development
Order. However, should member consider that the pitched roofs are required the
applicant has confirmed that these could be added and could be secured by
condition.

Replacement of brick on edge parapet wall at ground floor with an aluminium coping.

This is considered to be a minor amendment and is not clearly visible within the
streetscene. Therefore, it is considered that this variation has negligible impact on
the streetscene.

Render above front doors has been lowered to match the render from the front and
side elevations.

This element is set back from the main frontage of the building and is considered to
be a minor alteration which has a negligible impact on the character of the area.

Removal of false Chimneys

As noted above the Inspector did not impose a condition removing permitted
development rights. Chimney can be removed without requiring planning
permission. However, should Members consider that the chimneys should be
reinstated the applicant has indicated that these could be provided which could be
secured by a condition.

Replacement of triangular coping over party wall with brick on edge detailing.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

61



It is considered that the brick on edge detailing is acceptable and does not impact
on the character of the dwellings or the streetscene.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

62



6.3.12

6.3.13

6.3.14

6.3.15

Reduction of brick panel on the rear elevation to one brick width and Angled
brickwork above rear porch (77A).

These elements are to the rear of the property and are considered to be minor
alterations which do not impact of the character of the dwelling or the surrounding
area.

Replacement of white UPVC windows with Black UPVC windows; Change from
patio doors to bi-fold doors at rear; One large rooflight changed to two small
rooflights; Increase in height of first floor side windows (by lowering the cil); Increase
in_height of ground floor side windows (by lowering the cil) — consented scheme
showed clear glazing obscure glazing has been installed; New obscure window at

ground floor.

These elements could be carried out under permitted development. It is noted that
the replacement of the white upvc windows with black frames is contrary to the
details approved under P/1982/17. However, had white upvc windows been
installed the future occupier could have changed these at a future date.

Roof tiles of the dwellings are not as approved under P/3331/16

As noted above given that permitted development rights have not been withdrawn
from these dwellings, the roof tiles could be replaced under permitted development.
Also, it is noted that the boundary treatment of the front garden and the cycle/bins
stores have not been constructed. These elements were pre-occupation conditions,
given that the dwellings are not yet occupied this condition has not been breached.
A condition is recommended to ensure that these are completed prior to occupation.

In summary, the existing dwellinghouses are considered to have an acceptable
impact on the character of the area.

6.4 Residential Amenity
The relevant policies are:
» Harrow Core Strategy 2012:CS1
= Harrow Development Management Polices Local Plan (2013): DM1, DM2, DM27
» London Plan Policy (2021): D3, D6
» Residential Design Guide (2010)
» The London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016)
Impacts on neighbouring properties

6.4.1 Policy DM1 of the DMP seeks to ensure that “proposals that would be detrimental
to the privacy and amenity of neighbouring occupiers, or that would fail to achieve
satisfactory privacy and amenity for future occupiers of the development, will be
resisted”.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

63



6.4.2 As noted above the development is to the same footprint and scale as the approved
scheme and therefore it is considered that there would be no additional harm to the
neighbouring residents. While additional windows have been added to the flank
elevations these are all obscure glazed and are considered to have an acceptable
impact on the amenities of neighbouring occupiers.

Accessible Homes

6.4.3 Policy DM2 of the DMP seeks to ensure that all new housing is built to ‘Lifetime
Homes’ standards.

6.4.4 Policy CS1.K of the Harrow Core Strategy requires all new dwellings to comply with
the requirements of Lifetime Homes.

6.4.5 While the above policies require compliance with Lifetime Home Standards, in
October 2015 these standards were replaced by New National Standards which
require 90% of homes to meet Building regulation M4 (2) - ‘accessible and adaptable
dwellings’.

6.4.6 The Inspector attached a condition to the approval of the appeal to ensure that the

development is constructed to the specification of Part M, M4 (2). This condition
has been recommended.

Secure by Design

6.4.7 The Inspector did not attach a condition to the approval and therefore it would be
unreasonable to attach a condition to this application.

6.5 Traffic, Parking and Servicing
The relevant policies are:

= Harrow Core Strategy 2012:CS1
= Harrow Development Management Polices Local Plan (2013): DM42. DM43
= London Plan (2021): T4, T5, T6

6.5.1 The Inspector raised no concerns regarding transport and parking. A condition was
imposed on the appeal approval to ensure that offstreet parking be laid out and
made available for use prior to occupation. This condition has been recommended.

7.0 CONCLUSION AND REASONS FOR APPROVAL

7.1 While it is regrettable that the dwellinghouses were not completed in accordance
with the approved plans. The completed development has an acceptable impact
on the streetscene.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

64



7.2 For all the reasons considered above, and weighing up the development plan
policies and proposals, and other material considerations including comments
received in response to notification and consultation as set out above, this

application is recommended for grant.

Checked
tas V<
Mehdi Rezaie Viv. Evans . .
Head of Development Management (Interim) | Chief Planning Officer
22nd December 2022 22nd December 2022

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

65



APPENDIX 1: CONDITIONS AND INFORMATIVES
Conditions

1. Approved Plans and Documents

The development hereby permitted shall be retained in accordance with the
following documents and plans: Design and Access Statement; C243-04 Rev A,
C243-05 Rev A, C243-06 Rev A, C243-11 Rev A, C243-12 Rev A, C243-13 Rev
A, C243-15Rev A, C243-16 Rev A, C243-17 Rev A, C319-101 Rev A, C319-
151 Rev A; C319-152 Rev A; C319-153 Rev A, C319-155 Rev A; C319-156 Rev
A, C319-157 Rev A; C319-173 Rev A;

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2. Boundary Treatment

The approved boundary treatment between the front gardens of the houses shall
be implemented on site prior to first occupation.

REASON: To safeguard the appearance and character of the area, and to enhance
the appearance of the development in accordance with Policy DM1 of the Harrow
Development Management Local Plans Policy (2013).

3. Refuse store

Other than on collection days, the refuse/waste bins shall at all times be stored in
the approved refuse/waste storage area on plan C319-152 Rev A. The
refuse/waste storage area shall be retained and kept available for its intended
purpose at all times thereafter

REASON: To safeguard the appearance and character of the area, and to enhance
the appearance of the development in accordance with Policy DM1 of the Harrow
Development Management Local Plans Policy (2013).

4. Parking

All off-street parking shall be laid out and made available for use in accordance
with plan C319-52 Rev A prior to the first occupation of the approved houses and
shall be retained and kept available for their intended purpose at all times
thereafter.

5. Accessible Units.

The development hereby permitted shall be constructed to the specifications of:
"Part M, M4(2), Category 2: Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings" of the Building
Regulations 2013 and thereafter retained in that form.

REASON: To ensure that the development is capable of meeting ‘Accessible and
Adaptable Dwellings’ standards in accordance with Policy D7 of The London Plan

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

66



2021, policy CS1.K of The Harrow Core Strategy 2012 and policies DM1 and DM2
of the Development Management Policies Local Plan 2013.

Informatives:
1. Policies
The following policies are relevant to this decision:

The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

London Plan 2021: D3, D12, T5, T6.1

The Harrow Core Strategy 2012: CS1.

Harrow Development Management Policies Local Plan 2013:
DM1, DM2, DM42, DM45

Relevant Supplementary Documents:

Supplementary Planning Document: Sustainable Building Design (2010)
Supplementary Planning Document: Garden Land Development (2013)

The London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016)

Code of Practice for Storage and Collection of Refuse and Materials for Recycling
in Domestic Properties (2016)

2 Street numbering

Harrow Council is responsible for the naming and numbering of new or existing
streets and buildings within the borough boundaries. The council carries out these
functions under the London Government Act 1963 and the London Building Acts
(Amendment) Act 1939. All new developments, sub division of existing properties
or changes to street names or numbers will require an application for official Street
Naming and Numbering (SNN). If you do not have your development officially
named/numbered, then then it will not be officially registered and new owners etc.
will have difficulty registering with utility companies etc. You can apply for SNN
by contacting technicalservices@harrow.gov.uk or on the following link.
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/100011/transport_and_streets/1579/street_namin
g_and numbering

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

67


http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/100011/transport_and_streets/1579/street_naming_and_numbering
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/100011/transport_and_streets/1579/street_naming_and_numbering

APPENDIX 2: SITE PLAN

-
&7
&
i LE
-
&
¢ &
5
&
£ 3
L]
Fa
P
S .
;'r. H"h._
r i
108 é\g fi =
! 77 -
. .
. ey
. — ~.
102 . . H‘“-.,?
il N !
/
&
.'l-
a 5
B § M‘H\H /
& oy
I
a3
104 P
&5
-
0102 STE LOCATICN PLAR (15000
ar

77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

68

Planning Committee 18t January 2023



APPENDIX 3: PLANS

Approved Site plan

NOLTS HLLVIEW ROAD

SIE 2R

3038 S

HILLVIEW ROAD

ST,

e i

(e

NEL78 HILLVIEW ROAD

| ‘/
| ‘ {
|
C243-12 Plopbsed Ground Floor Plan {Rev A \‘
A TEMN
= 'r:": u:"M:wy,:. s T CRAWINGS F:,NE
Existing Site plan
NO.75 HILLVIEW ROAD P——
=
Vs NENOPAGUEWRDOW _____ 3 A = -‘ﬁ—;‘—-f‘_{::_‘;_,ﬁ e =t
R e

PARCING SPACE DI

T e e o]
L o WO R R | L ]
PARKING SPACE 02 * B

HOUSE 01 ENTRACE } T T
| i A srcnon P
N — g b) 7 SICNE TERRACE
| T
| | | | ] -l 1
| | ! LANDSCAPED L MOWED LAWN
| | FRONTAGE L k T
| f 1 LT
Q v €01 B CENTRED ON Wi -
o]
& !
z ji
S
s |
b= 1 !
= LANCSCAPED J
A fRouTARE i =3 STONE TERRACE MOWED LAWN
3! - 3
= T p——
i { o
]
H HOUSE 02 ENTRANCE ]
I | PARYING SPACE 01 PARKING SPACE 02 OCKANF BCYCUR PR |
% SroRsdE e e e s e e
R TS TeEE e T E s e Ty
[ ... [o v ot E = TF
‘ W OPAGUE WINDOW
A
| \
) o
HO_79 HILLAEW ROAD y
I
C319 - 52 Proposed Ground Floor Plan (Rev A)
w ww on e T AACRD T, WA 9
Tren VTOCTTT RORwAL VARAYCRACE CONOACH SISO TE N 1552 hooosed Ground Floor an Rev A Y
s moer | cEt G N
[PROPOSED DRAWINGS] o u [ e[ 5] |rrve| = "

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

69



Approved Elevations

[reooraroe:

VS T R

o e s wan s | 1t

21 S0 R e ¢ CAEM s D0wS PR [er ew srcer [ s ce vances as 14 |

% 78N
’EE|3 (E1ZTS

)
P a0

=[]

“than

w5

Tie=
==I8

e

HGUS=02
277 K LLVIEW RCAD - SIE KT8 ENTRANCE. He. 79 HILLYEW 2240 Rk

— 15.01 Proposed Front Elevation NOTE f
HLLVIEW
RCAD

TOP OFRODT+7268
RIDGE+7230

2ADGE 4724
OUTINE GF — —_—
ExSTNG B _DING

HDGE 47258

=

n | n EAVRTO.44 s
EAVES #7000
=== s
470 B 2 2 = - 2
47.01 2azaRETl Al | EAVES 673 . e
OF ROOF +46.50 ik - 8 P
I I T— e
- wa
o=y = EREISINIE
- B = [ = : e
i LS BEEN T B B 1 2 : i
i - = | L
O [LOGR+638 | =: ALOGR 850 1 —
[ 2 = — i
| 1 sam
N Ma7? HLLVEW ROAD —¢ No.77 HILLVIEW 2340 5 1= EATENTS b MO ALLVIE RDAD
15.02 Proposed Rear Elevation
C243 - 15 Proposed Front & Rear Elevations [Rev A)
T T NEn RO FAEARG T
e Bsd  BLIY 16 FORUALP AN AT e “16 Fropeas Font & Reer Sevations @ev Al
S — e b0 A il e e
RS = » s e Garia:
PROPCSED DRAWINGS| | os s o
b VAR Ao s S LR o 5 e G v it e e BB MAS K1 T RVRO L E S TR R TRIE G LK
e e e [T oer [ o i wsaamn [ wevasame i ]
p ey Lo [ wreanoot T = ]
e "
s i
BT = B e Tt
P s
3 — — LS = e R —
B e i) Lt e e e
z 4 4 2 15
il e | N —- it
Py — bp— e gty
i I —— o il
o500 7 4 1 y— e
= ! s ——
i I .
- 2 GROIND 4.1 o

S e
- 5 ——
am = s
. = -
S S @
e

\
=]

15 2 4 2
i —t"}
e s e e lle e Bl e e s b it wasllab e S AR el o L g o
,,,,,, o
| 4 |
= SN AR 5 o GO H
nmrEI AT
T o Sy
a4

16.02 Proposed Side Elevation {facing No.75 Hillview Road)

C243 - 16 Proposed Side Flevations (Rev A)

ven

o (26w A

TEMN

\ole 1R 43 | e 3 M Fropetes 2

PROPOSED DRAWINGS| s | s [ 2] s B [Erwe| B Gl

LRSI L Q71T 1 134 AP GG Stan, S SRR 17 AR T T 08 X 5

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

70



Existing Elevations

oo [ comvcrommt o sarmioow | o i woor o Tt miaraaa comie purmancr, | o sacn oo o o T oo wmivoms T T maremaren comm e

2 | P [ [a [ svcra gamemns [w [y e cavoer-uass [
o o
0
o)
o
senn
saan
o0
o
e
wwan
i A
@ 15501 Proposed Front Elevation  woss —4 ENTRANCE No.77 HILLVIEW ROIAL - SITE EXTENTS ENTRANCE }— nadv HLvEW ROAD was
HILLVIEW
ROAD
e o
2 o
) )
00 o
e wnn
a0 a0
am s
oo “ein
s sesn
i -0
P . a0
i i
155.02 Proposed Rear Elevation Ho,79 HILLYIEW ROAD —§ 14077 HILLVIEW ROAD - SITE EXTENTS }— HO7s HILVIEW ROAD
C319-155 Proposed Front & Rear Elevations (Rev A)
e noe T SACHED, P 78
[PESSRUSS I ——— fovA  130CT22 FORMAL AFFUCATION SUBMBSION C315-155 Proposed front & Rear Bivations [Rev 4]
e —————————— w0k L1043 o | ot aGnomNopete
PROPOSED DRAWINGS| | o5 | 15 | s | 35 | & | |pyappe| (o0m8fr 1o pemooom
. P o Wi a8 4 50 TENPOINTIVE EChIFECILIE 184 WHITINGFOH WAY FINKER, HASEIY 11000 BCH #208 E MAIGTEPORIRVECOLE
[Com T comecs iva vt | & s o T K T v wessit = i I
| 2 srcocosm e | . il rmecan | & AT FINCL) G | e | 14 e PTGl [ |
n nm
e fnm
ma nx
wanrm e
aaiz w
e om
wtar wm
waar wm
wiaih an
o na
v am
noe e
wean o
e e
ik ey
waa o
waare am
156.02 Proposed Side Bevation (facing Mo.75 Hillvew Rood)
C319-154 Proposed Side Elevations [Rev A)
o ] o e e
[ ————— COE e CANW-156 Fropmed Sde Bevobor Fov A
it o 1200 ey | et b i 4
L (D] e [ [y s rom oo
a IE 3w an an D e e L e

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

71



APPENDIX 4: SITE PHOTOS

11/11/2022 15:40

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

72



(42
N
L
>
N
AN
1 ©
.‘.2
S~
—
—
~
o™
o

73 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

Planning Committee 18t January 2023



22/11/2022 15:23

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

74



APPENDIX 5: APPEAL DECISION

| & The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 30 January 2017

by Zoe Raygen Dip URP MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government
Decision date: 10 February 2017

Appeal Ref: APP/M5450/W/16/3161002
77 Hillview Road, Pinner HAS 4PB

« The appeal is made under saction 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 15990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

« The appeal is made by AG Nam Properties Ltd against the dedsion of the Council of the
London Borough of Harrow.

+ The application Ref P/3331/16, dated 8 July 2016, was refused by notice dated
3 Octaber 2016,

+  The development proposed is redevelopment to provide a palr of semi-detached two
storey dwellings with habitable roofspace; new vehicular access parking bin/cycle
storage landscaping and boundary treatments.,

Decision

1. The appeal is allowad and planning permission is granted for redevelopment to
provide a pair of semi-detached two storey dwellings with habitable roofspace;
new vehicular access parking binfcycle storage landscaping and boundary
treatments at 77 Hillview Road, Pinner HAS 4PB in accordance with the terms of
the application, Pf3331/16, dated & July 2016 subject to the conditions set out in
the schedule to this decision notica.

Main Issues

2. The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of
the area.

3. The area within with the appeal site is located has a mix of detached and semi-
detached properties on a fairly uniform building line. Many of the dwellings have
bean extended. This together with the variety of types of properties means the
character and appearance of the area is quite mixed. Spacing between the
houses is varied. Some have been extended directly up to the boundary with
the neighbouring property, whereas others have a small gap. Where there are
gaps or single storey side extensions/garages views are available through to tree
tops and rear gardens.

4. The existing property is a detached house set in a large plot in betwean semi-
detached properties. The proposal to demalish it and erect a pair of semi-
detached houses would result in two plots narrower than those in the
surrounding area. Newvertheless, a gap would be maintained to either side of the
new dwellings, which would be similar to and in some cases greater than others
on the street. As a result views to rear gardens would still be available and the

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

75



Appeal Decision APR/M5450,/W/16/3161002

proposal would not create a terracing effect. Furthermore, according te figures
supplied by the appellant although the width of each plot would be narrower
than others in the street it would not be by a materially significant amount. The
figures have not been disputed by the Council. Moreover, although the width of
aach house would be narrower than others on the street, the building has bean
designed as one entity and would be read as such. As such its width would not
be unique or visually unacceptable.

5. The two houses would take their design cue from the neighbouring properties to
the north east, each having a gable front with a ground floor bay window. T also
saw that the mix of render and brick, together with the entrance doors to the
side of the front elevation, velux windows and the roof articulation would not be
unusual in the area. Furthermore, although the properties would contain three
storeys of accommodation, the eaves line and height of the houses would be
broadly consistent with the houses either side and within the row of dwellings.
As a result, while the 3 storeys of accommeodation would significantly increase
the amount of floorspace provided on the site comparad to the existing detached
house, and according to residents, would be 84% larger than the average floor
space of Nos 71, 73, 75 and 79, it would do so in a way that would not be out of
scale, dominant or abtrusive within the street scene,

&. The existing rear garden would be subdivided to provide private space for future
occupiers, I saw that it is well stocked with trees and shrubs and has an apple
tree broadly in the centre of the garden. This is a small tree which would not be
viewad from the public realm. I have not been advised by the Council that the
tree is worthy of protection and therefora I see no constraint to the subdivision
of the garden to the rear.

7. The front garden, is prominant within the street scene, but the lawned area has
already been subdivided by a path. However, I consider that any boundary
treatment should be carefully controlled through the imposition of condition to
prevent high fencing which would be particularly harmful to the open, verdant
character of the strast.

8. I have carefully considered local resident’s concerns that the current propesal
would set a precedent for a similar development on the streest, particularly given
the row of large detached houses opposite the appeal site. [ have not though
been made aware of any specific proposals that have been foerthcoming. Each
application and appeal must be determined on its individual merits, and a
generalised concern of this nature does not justify withhaolding permission in this
case,

9. For the reasons above I conclude that the proposed houses would not be harmful
to the character and appearance of the area. There would therefore be no
conflict with policy DM1 of the Harrow Development Management Policies 2013,
Policy C51 of the Harrow Core Strategy 2012, Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the Londan
Flan 2016 (LP) and the Supplementary Planning Document Residential Design
Guide 2010 (the SPD). These requira, amongst other things that development is
a high standard of design that responds to local context.

Other matters

10. I had the opportunity to view the appeal site from both the garden and kitchen
of 79 Hillview Reoad. The garden area adjacent te the rear elevation of No 79 is

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

76



Appeal Decision APP/M5450,/W/16/3161002

paved and has tables and chairs for sitting out. The kitchean window is in the
single storay elemant of No 79 closest to the boundary with the appeal site.

11. The proposed building would extend a small way beyond the rear elevation of No
79, However the part of the building closest to the boundary would be single
storey with the two storey element being set further back. As a result of the
limited height and extent of the proposal beyond the rear elevation of No 79
together with the distance from the boundary it would not be significantly
overbearing to either the kitchen window or the garden space. Moreover the
Council eonfirm that the proposal would comply with guidance in the SPD as it
would not dissect the 45 degree lines taken from the closest rear corners of No
79 or No 75. As a result it would not have an unacceptable impact on outlook,
or light.

12. Residents have stated that they consider the plans to be misleading but offer no
substantive evidence to demonstrate why. The plans have been prepared by a
chartered architect who is a member of professional institutes. Furthermore, the
architect has detailed the method used to ascertain measuraments. I have no
reason to doubt therefore that the plans are correct. I also note that the Council
raise no issue in this respect.

13. I note the concerns of residents regarding the potential increase in cars that will
be caused through the provision of two 4 bedroom houses and the consequent
impact on an already congested area. I saw that most houses had capacity for
off street parking, neverthaless some limited on street parking was cccurring at
the time of my site visit. I appreciate that this was anly a snap shot in time and
the demand for parking may be higher in the evenings and at weekends.
Meverthaless [ have been supplied with no substantive evidence regarding high
levels of on street parking in the area or ongoing problems of highway capacity.
Furthermore each house would have two off street parking spaces which would
be in accordance with the standards in the LP therefore making adequate
provision for parking. I am not persuaded therefore that parking and traffic
movements associatad with the addition of two houses would cause harm to
highway safety.

14, The existing house is not protected by any designation to prevent its demalition.
Furthermaore, restrictive covenants, being private property matters, are outside
the planning considerations with which I am concerned in this appeal.

15. Residents also refer me to para 9.1 of section 9 of the "Harrow Development
Flan" regarding the protection of cpen space, heritage and leafy suburbs within
Finner and Hatch End. However, I have already concluded that the proposal
would not be harmful to the character and appearance of the area. It follows
therefore that I consider it would comply with the requirement of this paragraph.

16. The residents also refer to the document Supplementary Planning Document
Garden Land Development 2013 (SPDGLD) which provides guidance on naw
development on garden land. The document though specifically excludes the
redevelopment of an existing dwelling or group of dwellings to provide multiple
dwellings or flats on the same building footprint, plus any appropriate
anlargement (axtension that accords with the SPD), from its definition of garden
land development. The Council confirm in its committee report that although the
footprint of the proposal is larger than the existing house on site the existing
house could be extended with deap/larger extensions under Permitted
Develecpment and therefore complies with the reguirements in the SPDGLD.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

77



Appeal Decision APR/M5450,/W/16/3161002

The contents of the SPDGLD have therefore not been determinative in this
appeal.

Conditions

17. 1 have had regard to the various planning conditions that have been suggestad
by the Council and considered them against the tests in the Framewaork and the
advice in the Planning Practice Guidance and have made such amandments as
necassary to comply with those documents. In the interests of clarity it is
appropriate that there is a condition requiring that the development is carried
out in accordance with the approved plans.

18. Conditions relating to materials, boundary treatment and refuse collection are
necessary to protect the character and appearance of the area. The Council has
suggested that a condition be imposed regarding the submission of a
landscaping scheme. However, this would be a small domestic scheme where
landscaping should be left to the discretion of the owners.

19. I have carefully considered the Council’s submitted condition regarding the
removal of permitted development rights for the proposed houses. Paragraph
017 of the Planning Practice Guidance states that conditions restricting the
future use of permitted development rights will rarely pass the test of necessity
and should only be used in exceptional circumstances. I have seen no
canvinecing reason for this being an exceptional circumstance for removing
permitted developrnent rights and therefare I have not imposed this condition,

20. Following consultation with both parties I have imposed a condition relating to
the layout and retention of the car parking spaces in the interests of highway
safety.

21. Finally, I have imposed a condition requiring that the development is constructed
to the specifications of Part M, M4 (2), category 2: Accessible and Adaptable
Dwellings’ of the Building Regulations 2013, This is to ensure that the proposal
meets the needs of a range of different users and meets the requirements of
Folicy 3.8 of the LP which states that 90% of new housing meets Building
Regulation requirement M4 (2} Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings.

Conclusion

22. For the reasons set out above, and having regard to all other matters raised, I
conclude that the appeal should be allowed.

Zoe Raygen
INSPECTOR

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

/8



Appeal Decision APF/M5450/W/16/3161002

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans: C243-01 Rev A, C243-04 Rev A, C243-05
Rev 4, C243-06 Rev &, C243-09 Rev A, C243-11 Rev A, C243-12 Rev A,
C243-13 Rev A, C243-15 Rev A, C243-16 Rev A, C243-17 Rev A, C243-33
Rev A, C243-34 Rev A,

3) Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved drawings, the
development hereby permitted shall not commence beyond damp proof
course level until samples of the materials to be used in the construction
of the external surfaces noted below have been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the local planning authority:

a: the dwellinghouses

b: ground surfacing
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details which shall thereafter be retained.

4) The development hereby permitted shall not commence beyond damp
proof course level until details of the boundary treatment between the
front gardens of the houses has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. The approved details shall be
implemented on site prior to the approved dwelling being first occupied
and retained thereaftar.

5) Other than on collection days, the refuse/waste bins shall at all times be
stored in the approved refuse/waste storage area on plan ref C243-12 A,
The refuse/waste storage area shall be retained and kept available for its
intended purpose at all times thereafter.

&) Al off street parking shall be laid cut and made available for use in
accordance with plan ref C243-12 A prior to the first occupation of the
approved houses and they shall be retained and kept available for their
intended purpose at all times thereafter.

7) The development hereby permitted shall be constructed to the
specifications of ‘Part M, M4 (2), category 2: Accessible and Adaptable
Dwellings’ of the Buildings Regulations 2015 and thereafter retained in
that form.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

79



This page has been left intentionally blank

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

80



Aaenda Item 12.(c)
Pages 81 to 108

Agenda Item: 2/03

o = application site

77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS5 4PB P/3564/22

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

81



LOCATION PLAN

ol
-@',1',.{@_
&F
&
i LB
E
Es)
L &
3
&
¥ T3
o8
.
/! e,
) .
/ “'\-.H_l
=
1600 ,_'\'E: ! S
LA, 77 S
.
e e,
1 S i -
e, e
il ’_.-’
& i
3@? = e /
04 -
F of
&
134 B
a5
i
bl

0102 STE LOCATICH PLAM [1:500)

77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS5 4PB

Planning Committee 18t January 2023



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW

PLANNING COMMITTEE

18th January 2023
APPLICATION NUMBER: P/3564/22
VALIDATE DATE: 18/10/2022
LOCATION: 77 HILLVIEW ROAD
WARD: HATCH END
POSTCODE: HA5 4PB
APPLICANT: MR & MRS MANGA
AGENT: TEN POINT FIVE ARCHITECTURE
CASE OFFICER: CATRIONA COOKE
EXPIRY DATE: 07/12/22

PROPOSAL

Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) attached to planning permission P/3331/16 allowed
on appeal reference APP/M5450/W/16/3161002 to allow alterations to elevations

RECOMMENDATION

The Planning Committee is asked to:

1) Agree the reasons for approval as set out in this report, and
2) Grant planning permission subject to the conditions listed in Appendix 1 of this
report:

REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

The variations to the approved development are considered to be modest and have an
acceptable impact on the character and appearance of the area.

Accordingly, weighing up the development plan policies and proposals along with other
material considerations including comments received in response to notification and
consultation as set out below, Officers consider and conclude that, subject to planning
conditions, the proposed development is acceptable and worthy of support. In accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework, including its presumption in favour of
sustainable development, and subject to conditions, officers recommend that the application
is approved.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

83



INFORMATION

This application is reported to Planning Committee at the request of a nominated member
in the public interest and therefore falls within proviso A of the Scheme of Delegation.

This application was deferred from the December planning committee to permit
consideration of this alongside the concurrent planning application P/3574/22.

Statutory Return Type: E13 Minor Dwellings
Council Interest: N/A

Net additional Floorspace: 52 sgqm

GLA Community Infrastructure Levy N/A

(CIL) Contribution (provisional):

Local CIL requirement: N/A

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the
processing of the application and the preparation of this report.

EQUALITIES

In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its equalities obligations
including its obligations under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

For the purposes of this application there are no adverse equalities issues.

S17 CRIME & DISORDER ACT

Policy D11 of the London Plan (2021) and Policy DM1 of the Development Management
Polices Local Plan require all new developments to have regard to safety and the measures
to reduce crime in the design of development proposal. It is considered that the development
does not adversely affect crime risk. However, a condition was not imposed on the appeal
scheme and therefore it would be unreasonable for a condition to be attached.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

84



1.0

SITE DESCRIPTION

1.1. The site contains a recently completed pair of semi-detached properties located on
the south eastern side of Hillview Road.

1.2. The site has a maximum width of 15.20m and a maximum depth of 48.8m. The
footprint of the site is 721.52sq m.

1.3. The site is set within a row of residential dwellinghouses, with semi-detached
houses interspersed with detached houses to the north and to the south. The
neighbour immediately to the south is No. 79 Hillview Road, with No. 75 Hillview
Road to the north. The character of the area is varied.

1.4. The site is located in a Critical Drainage Area and has no other statutory
designations.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 The application seeks to vary conditon 2 of appeal Decision
APP/M5450/W/16/3161002 to allow the following amendments:

. V1 - Reduction of Brick panel on the front elevation to one brick width

. V2 - Centralised bay window/first floor windows centralised to bay window

. V3 - Reduction in width of front gable to match the width of the first-floor
windows.

. V4 - Removal of pitched roof over bay windows

. V5 - Replacement of brick on edge parapet wall at ground floor with an
aluminium coping.

. V6 - Render above front doors has been lowered to match the render from
the front and side elevations.

. V7 - Removal of false Chimneys

. V8- Replacement of triangular coping over party wall with brick on edge
detailing.

. V9 — Replacement of white UPVC windows with Black UPVC windows

. V10 - Reduction of brick panel on the rear elevation to one brick width

. V11 - Angled brickwork above rear porch (77A).

. V.12 - Change from patio doors to bi-fold doors at rear

. V.13 — One large rooflight changed to two small rooflights.

. V.14 — Increase in height of first floor side windows (by lowering the cil)

. V.15 — Increase in height of ground floor side windows (by lowering the cil) —
consent scheme showed clear glazing obscure glazing has been installed.

" V.16 — New obscure window at ground floor.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS5 4PB

85



3.0

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.1

A summary of the relevant planning application history is set out in the table below:

Ref no.

Description

Status & date
of decision

P/3331/16

Re-development to provide a pair of semi-detached two
storey dwellings with habitable roofspace; new vehicular
access parking bin / cycle storage landscaping and
boundary treatments

Refused
03/10/2016

Appeal Allowed
10/02/2017

P/1982/17

Details pursuant to Conditions 3 (Materials) and 4
(Boundary Treatment) attached to planning permission
P/3331/16 allowed on appeal reference
APP/M5450MW/16/3161002 dated 10/2/17 for Re-
development to provide a pair of semi-detached two
storey dwellings with habitable roofspace; new vehicular
access parking bin / cycle storage landscaping and
boundary treatments

Approved
07/07/2017

P/1391/20

CERTIFICATE OF LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT
(PROPOSED): Alterations to roof to form end gable, rear
dormer and insertion of three rooflights on front roofslope;
Front porch; Single storey side extensions to both sides;
Two storey rear extension

Refused
15/06/2020

Reasons for refusal:

1. The cubic content of the resulting roof space would exceed the cubic content of the
original roof space by more than 50 cubic meters. The proposal would therefore
not be within the tolerances of Schedule 2, Part 1 Class B.1(d)(ii) of The Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as
amended).

2. The proposal is NOT therefore a lawful development.

P/0368/20

Lawful implementation of planning permission P/3331/16
(construction of pair of semi-detached two storey
dwellings with habitable roofspace (2 x 4 beds); new
vehicular access parking bin / cycle storage landscaping
and boundary treatments) allowed on appeal
APP/M5450/W/16/3161002

Granted
20/04/2020

P/3574/22

Redevelopment to provide two X two storey (4 bed) semi-
detached dwelling houses with habitable roofspaces;
proposed vehicle access; separate amenity space; bin
and cycle stores

Under
assessment

Planning Committee 18t January 2023

86

77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS5 4PB




4.0 CONSULTATION

4.1 A total of 41 consultation letters were sent to neighbouring properties regarding
this application. A total of 9 responses were received.

4.2 A site notice was posted on 14 November 2022 expiring on 5" December 2022.

4.3 A summary of the consultation responses received along with the Officer
comments are set out in the table below: -

= A total of 16 violations should not be allowed as will set a precedent for other
developers.

Officer comment: Section 73 of the Planning Act allows a developer to submit an

application for retrospective planning permission without complying with the original

permission, as is the case under this application. The LPA is required to determine such

application as it would for a new application in accordance with the relevant development

in place at the time the application has been made.

= Materials are out of keeping with surrounding area
Officer comment: See 6.3. below

= Front gables inconsistent with neighbouring properties.
Officer comment: See 6.3.6 below

= Window panes of bay window inconsistent with first floor window
Officer comment: See 6.3.5 below

= The brick panel reduction in front elevation is an improvement but the two vertical full
height drainpipes have become an unsightly feature.
Officer comment: See 6.3.4 below

= The cycle storage, waste bin storage, box tree hedging separating the grass at the
front and low level brick wall along the boundary with pavement have not yet been
completed.

Officer comment: See 6.3.14 below

Consultee and Summary of Comments

Hatch End Association
» The Hatch End Association is very concerned that developers are willing to ignore
the planning regime when it suits them, and approval of this application is likely to
encourage others to follow suit. The Hatch End Association seeks to preserve
the essential character of Hatch End and sees no reason that blatant ignoring of
the rules should be allowed.

Landscape Officer
=  No comments received

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

87



5.0 POLICIES

5.1  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that:

‘If regard is to be had to the Development Plan for the purpose of any determination
to be made under the Planning Acts, the determination must be made in accordance
with the Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.’

5.2 The Government has issued the National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF 2021]
sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these should be
applied and is a material consideration in the determination of this application.

5.3 In this instance, the Development Plan comprises The London Plan 2021 [LP] and
the Local Development Framework [LDF]. The LDF comprises The Harrow Core
Strategy 2012 [CS], Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan 2013 [AAP], the
Development Management Policies Local Plan 2013 [DMP], the Site Allocations
Local Plan [SALP] 2013 and Harrow Local Area Map 2013 [LAP].

5.4  Afull list of all the policies used in the consideration of this application is provided as
Informative 1.

6.0 ASSESSMENT

6.1 The main issues are:
= Principle of the Development
= Design, Character and Appearance of the Area
» Residential Amenity
» Traffic and Parking
» Waste and Servicing
» Flood Risk and Drainage
» Biodiversity
» Fire Safety

6.2 Principle of Development
The relevant policies are:

» The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

» The London Plan (2021): H1, H2, H9

= Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM24

= Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1

= Supplementary Planning Document — Garden Land Development (2013)

6.2.1 The principle of the development has been established in the appeal allowed under
reference APP/M5450/W/16/3161002. As such, matters relating to the principle of
the development, the size of accommodation proposed, transport impacts,
landscaping and fire safety do not need to be considered under this application
again as these elements would remain unchanged from the original approval.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS5 4PB

88



6.3 Design, Character and Appearance of the Area
The relevant policies are:

National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

The London Plan 2021: D3

Harrow Core Strategy 2012: CS1

Harrow Development Management Polices Local Plan (2013): DM1, DM22, DM23
Residential Design Guide (2010)

The London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016)

Code of Practice for Storage and Collection of Refuse and Materials for Recycling
in Domestic Properties (2016)

6.3.1 Policy D3.D(1) of the London Plan states that development should in terms of form
and layout, enhance local context by delivering buildings and spaces that positively
respond to local distinctiveness through their layout, orientation, scale, appearance
and shape, with due regard to existing and emerging street hierarchy, building types,
forms and proportions. Policy D3.D(11) goes on to states that in terms of quality and
character, developments should respond to the existing character of a place by
identifying the special and valued features and characteristics that are unique to the
locality and respect, enhance and utilise the heritage assets and architectural
features that contribute towards the local character.

6.3.2 Policy DM1 of the DMP gives advice that “all development proposals must achieve
a high standard of design and layout. Proposals which fail to achieve a high standard
of design and layout, or which are detrimental to local character and appearance,
will be resisted”.

6.3.3 As noted above the development has been largely completed on site. The
development is to the same footprint and scale as the approved plans. In allowing
the appeal the Inspector did not include a condition restricting permitted
development rights for the dwellings. This application seeks to retrospectively vary
the approved plans which are assessed below.

6.3.4 V1 - Reduction of Brick panel on the front elevation to one brick width

It is considered that this element of the development by reducing the 1.8m wide
brick panel as approved to a 0.2m wide panel is an improvement to the approved
plans creating a more visually cohesive design. It is noted that objections have been
received relating to the visually prominent down pipes. However, these are normal
features of properties in the area. Therefore, it is considered that this element has
an acceptable impact on the character of the area.

6.3.5 V2 - Centralised bay window/first floor windows centralised to bay window

This amendment is considered to be minor and in centralising the bay windows and
first floor windows the development has a balanced frontage which is in keeping
with the area.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

89



6.3.6

6.3.7

6.3.8

6.3.9

6.3.10

6.3.11

6.3.12

V3 - Reduction in width of front gable to match the width of the first-floor windows.

As noted by the Inspector in allowing the appeal, the area is mixed in character and
appearance. While reduction in width of the front gables is a significant variation to
the approved plans, it is considered that given the varied character of the area this
element does not have a negative impact on the character of the area.

V4 - Removal of pitched roof over bay windows

There are examples within the area of single storey front extension with flat roofs.
It is considered that this is a minor change which does not have a harmful impact
on the character of the area. Furthermore, as noted above the Appeal Decision
does not remove permitted development right and it is considered that the pitched
roofs could be removed under Class A of the General Permitted Development
Order. However, should member consider that the pitched roofs are required the
applicant has confirmed that these could be added and could be secured by
condition.

V5 - Replacement of brick on edge parapet wall at ground floor with an aluminium
coping.

This is considered to be a minor amendment and is not clearly visible within the
streetscene. Therefore, it is considered that this variation has negligible impact on
the streetscene.

V6 - Render above front doors has been lowered to match the render from the front
and side elevations.

This element is set back from the main frontage of the building and is considered to
be a minor alteration which has a negligible impact on the character of the area.

V7 - Removal of false Chimneys

As noted above the Inspector did not impose a condition removing permitted
development rights. Chimney can be removed without requiring planning
permission. However, should Members consider that the chimneys should be
reinstated the applicant has indicated that these could be provided which could be
secured by a condition.

V8- Replacement of trianqular coping over party wall with brick on edge detailing.

It is considered that the brick on edge detailing is acceptable and does not impact
on the character of the dwellings or the streetscene.

V10 - Reduction of brick panel on the rear elevation to one brick width
V11 - Angled brickwork above rear porch (77A).

These elements are to the rear of the property and are considered to be minor
alterations which do not impact of the character of the dwelling or the surrounding
area.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

90



6.3.13

6.3.14

6.3.15

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

V9 — Replacement of white UPVC windows with Black UPVC windows

V.12 - Change from patio doors to bi-fold doors at rear

V.13 — One large rooflight changed to two small rooflights.

V.14 — Increase in height of first floor side windows (by lowering the cil)

V.15 — Increase in_height of ground floor side windows (by lowering the cil) —
consented scheme showed clear glazing obscure glazing has been installed.

V.16 — New obscure window at ground floor.

These elements could be carried out under permitted development. While it is noted
that the replacement of the white upvc windows with black frames is contrary to the
details approved under P/1982/17. However, had white upvc windows been
installed the future occupier could have changed these at a future date.

In addition to the variations listed above the roof tiles of the dwellings are not as
approved under P/3331/16. However as noted above given that permitted
development rights have not been withdrawn from these dwellings, the roof tiles
could be replaced under permitted development. Also, it is noted that the boundary
treatment of the front garden and the cycle/bins stores have not been constructed.
These elements were pre-occupation conditions, given that the dwellings are not yet
occupied this condition has not been breached. A condition is recommended to
ensure that these are completed prior to occupation.

In summary, the variations are not considered to result in significant harm to the
host dwellings or the surrounding area to warrant refusal.

Residential Amenity
The relevant policies are:

Harrow Core Strategy 2012:CS1

Harrow Development Management Polices Local Plan (2013): DM1, DM2, DM27
London Plan Policy (2021): D3, D6

Residential Design Guide (2010)

The London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016)

Impacts on neighbouring properties

Policy DM1 of the DMP seeks to ensure that “proposals that would be detrimental
to the privacy and amenity of neighbouring occupiers, or that would fail to achieve
satisfactory privacy and amenity for future occupiers of the development, will be
resisted”.

As noted above the development is to the same footprint and scale as the approved
scheme and therefore it is considered that there would be no additional harm to the
neighbouring residents. While additional windows have been added to the flank
elevations these are all obscure glazed and are considered to have an acceptable
impact on the amenities of neighbouring occupiers.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

91



Accessible Homes

6.4.3 Policy DM2 of the DMP seeks to ensure that all new housing is built to ‘Lifetime
Homes’ standards.

6.4.4 Policy CS1.K of the Harrow Core Strategy requires all new dwellings to comply with
the requirements of Lifetime Homes.

6.4.5 While the above policies require compliance with Lifetime Home Standards, in
October 2015 these standards were replaced by New National Standards which
require 90% of homes to meet Building regulation M4 (2) - ‘accessible and adaptable
dwellings’.

6.4.6 The Inspector attached a condition to the approval of the appeal to ensure that the

development is constructed to the specification of Part M, M4 (2). This condition
has been recommended.

Secure by Design

6.4.7 The Inspector did not attach a condition to the approval and therefore it would be
unreasonable to attach a condition to this application.
6.5 Traffic, Parking and Servicing
The relevant policies are:
= Harrow Core Strategy 2012:CS1
= Harrow Development Management Polices Local Plan (2013): DM42. DM43
= London Plan (2021): T4, T5, T6
6.5.1 The Inspector raised no concerns regarding transport and parking. A condition was

imposed on the appeal approval to ensure that offstreet parking be laid out and
made available for use prior to occupation. This condition has been recommended.

7.0 CONCLUSION AND REASONS FOR APPROVAL

7.1 While it is regrettable that the variations to the consented scheme were not sought
prior to completion of development. The completed development has an
acceptable impact on the street scene.

7.2 For all the reasons considered above, and weighing up the development plan
policies and proposals, and other material considerations including comments
received in response to notification and consultation as set out above, this
application is recommended for grant.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

92



Checked

[ IS

Viv Evans
Chief Planning Officer

Mehdi Rezaie
Head of Development Management (Interim)

227d December 2022 22" December 2022

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

93




APPENDIX 1: CONDITIONS AND INFORMATIVES

Conditions

1. Approved Plans and Documents

The development hereby permitted shall be retained in accordance with the
following documents and plans: C243-01 Rev A, C243-04 Rev A, C243-05 Rev
A, C243-06 Rev A, C243-09 Rev A, C319-51 Rev A, C319-52 Rev A, C319-53
Rev A, C319-55 Rev A, C319-56 Rev A, C319-57 Rev A, C243-33 Rev A, C243-
34 Rev A

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2. Boundary Treatment

The approved boundary treatment between the front gardens of the houses shall
be implemented on site prior to first occupation.

REASON: To safeguard the appearance and character of the area, and to
enhance the appearance of the development in accordance with Policy DM1 of
the Harrow Development Management Local Plans Policy (2013).

3. Refuse store

Other than on collection days, the refuse/waste bins shall at all times be stored
in the approved refuse/waste storage area on plan C319-52 Rev A. The
refuse/waste storage area shall be retained and kept available for its intended
purpose at all times thereafter

REASON: To safeguard the appearance and character of the area, and to
enhance the appearance of the development in accordance with Policy DM1 of
the Harrow Development Management Local Plans Policy (2013).

4. Parking

All off-street parking shall be laid out and made available for use in accordance
with plan C319-52 Rev A prior to the first occupation of the approved houses
and shall be retained and kept available for their intended purpose at all times
thereafter.

5. Accessible Units.

The development hereby permitted shall be constructed to the specifications of:
"Part M, M4(2), Category 2: Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings" of the Building
Regulations 2013 and thereafter retained in that form.

REASON: To ensure that the development is capable of meeting ‘Accessible
and Adaptable Dwellings’ standards in accordance with Policy D7 of The London
Plan 2021, policy CS1.K of The Harrow Core Strategy 2012 and policies DM1
and DM2 of the Development Management Policies Local Plan 2013.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

94



INFORMATIVES:
1. Policies
The following policies are relevant to this decision:

The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

London Plan 2021: D3, D12, T5, T6.1

The Harrow Core Strategy 2012: CS1.

Harrow Development Management Policies Local Plan 2013:
DM1, DM2, DM42, DM45

Relevant Supplementary Documents:

Supplementary Planning Document: Sustainable Building Design (2010)
Supplementary Planning Document: Garden Land Development (2013)

The London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016)

Code of Practice for Storage and Collection of Refuse and Materials for
Recycling in Domestic Properties (2016)

2 Street numbering

Harrow Council is responsible for the naming and numbering of new or existing
streets and buildings within the borough boundaries. The council carries out
these functions under the London Government Act 1963 and the London
Building Acts (Amendment) Act 1939. All new developments, sub division of
existing properties or changes to street names or numbers will require an
application for official Street Naming and Numbering (SNN). If you do not have
your development officially named/numbered, then then it will not be officially
registered and new owners etc. will have difficulty registering with utility
companies  etc. You <can apply for SNN by contacting
technicalservices@harrow.gov.uk or on the following link.
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/100011/transport_and_streets/1579/street _nami
ng_and numbering

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

95


http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/100011/transport_and_streets/1579/street_naming_and_numbering
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/100011/transport_and_streets/1579/street_naming_and_numbering

APPENDIX 2: SITE PLAN

-
By
3
&7
&
N LE
E
g
¢ &
5
=
F 3
L]
-
-
g b o
2
108 ﬁ:\g ! .
L3 L 7 - ""\-.
. e .
3 —
| S e,

& y
5]
108 [
a5
U!l:l_MI;ILUC-'\'ILJN PLAR 15000
w
Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

96



APPENDIX 3: PLANS

Approved Site plan

NOTS HLLVIEW ROAD

R |
<
e}
2
s
g ;
z oo
" RNTAZES
, f 3
k
|
‘ NO.72 HILLVIEVY ROAD
|
) |
C243-12 Pr sed Ground Floor Plan (Rev A]

B oL mew

O e X1

2L FOR LA

a

ST sRACE

S —— © NoweD e g
au e
g i

TEMN

FiIvE

Existing Site plan

NC.75 HILLVIEW ROAD

e

e

ol
T R e A -
o LA TR N e T T T e e
wsfcasgn OGN
PARKHG SPACE O PARKING SPACE 02 *
HOUSE 01 ENTRANCE E o
| | / — e B [
s — (s i - 3 7 SICNE TERRACE
| [ .
| ] | \nosCArED 1 = = 3 MOWED LAwN
| | FRONTAGE i 5 —
L [ G
Q v; D1 B CENIRED O WAL # & 1
: AHGED FOR SLOMG DOORS
o ™ i
& !
w ’.:"
S K
= (¥ ] T
T LANCICATED )
FROMT
i PN I =13 STONE TERRAGE MOWED LAWN
it p— 1
W 10 oA
1 { -
e |
o
HOUSE 02 ENTRANCE ——=
FARKING SPACE Q1 L_L__

ek

|

PG wAcE 2 r

Sromase

e e L e g,

OPAGUE WINDOW

e e e
x :

o
T

] 5.0
NO.79 HILVIEW ROAD y
I
C319 - 52 Proposed Ground Floor Plan (Rev A)
w oo i 7T AACAD O, WA 9
o8 OCT T RO VARAYGH A SO O GG TEMN| 1552 fooomd Ground Floce Flan (Rev A
o 1500 W A3 o Tt AG Mo Pracertes i “
T
5w e @ sa RPN I IO L A WA P w3 180 M0 Pl € AL SOHEA £

Planning Committee 18t January 20

23

97

77 Hillview Road,

Pinner, HAS 4PB



Approved Elevations

P e T e AT

Tl RNy

T roorwrsis

[

Lk A

[onnev oo

ETTrTET

| [

1] BTN CE BN 0 A

oUTLNE
SCSTING 2U1.DING

RIDGE+7230

TOP OFRODE +7

OUTINE GF —
Ex ST NG B DG

HDCE 47288

&

2ADGE 4724

RS
2R, WG o
S 7 X
{ﬁ\ 78 N
N
'EE|3 = |15 & 70
% 00 [
: Uil 1= . HH -
= =i il Iy L1
| Ll i =S
HGLS: 07
15.01 Proposed Front Elevation NOT5 f 1277 HLLMEN RCAD - SITE SKT=4TS ENTRANCE Na.79 HILLYEW 2040 e
HLLVIEW
ROAD

=

BAVEeTOs

EAVES #7000

Sk}

e

15.02 Proposed Rear Elevation
C243-15

w0

47,01 2a%a% 2 2 = 4 ]

4701 3aza5T 2lr ! : el e

i 7 92 A APET —

an
T H i
2 i 4 8 . i
. B L
* OOk 30 ] —

— — —— e
I

Haze RN R0AD —

o.77 AILLVIER 304D 5 1= EXTENTS

Proposed Front & Rear Elevations [Rev A)

e et
SR e
o S

FLIY 14 FORMA = NG S

s

[ole Fle &

TEMN

FIVE

RSO YT GG IbarITE

PSR HAZ I T 0008 T S A ST PO TS

R e P T LR

e

T wiwome I

4 SNIRTGE G S

o

C243 - 16 Proposed Side Elevations (Rev A)

s o
E J——
e e
e, (|PQP (P e
oy _ _ —
3
N i e e o | e e I o e e Sty tte
o S — it
3 — — = —
e 7 4 g 3 — wsto
E] D e
=41 SROME #8211
s s
e = ___——— ™
2. S — e
- o 5 ——
]
—am I o
S P — ey S S |
i e
e 1
- 2 Y
. O i
,,,,,, e

5 L GO i

16.02 Proposed Side Elevation {facing No.75 Hillview Road)

N s

&) o [7] » 7]

TEMN

FIvE

Planning Committee 18t January 2023

98

77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS5 4PB



Existing Elevations

[roocmon: T comcoont T T T T vemarioomiree
[z sas o CASENT we O [a | | v eemasics cariorv-cumss [y
V7 - FALSE GHWINEYS:
. - . FALSE CHIMNEYS CrITTED St
V8- BRICK LOPNG: o P
TR0 TRIANGULAR BRICK COFING CHANGED TO BRICK ON EDGE 1“" ’ e
V3. GABLE] -
nm / GABLE CENIRAUISED OVER BAY WiNDOW ,' no
R I % - e L
CX PANEL WIDTH wucto: o rd
) L ' 5« K amae SIDE CF P L e
i3
e | a Vi BAY WINDOW ROOF: | e
. ot MR B CMRES oy ™ : FECEESROCECHAHE FOR LA HOOF
“m [ . oo
lam [ e
w“m 5 - OPNG: : ce
BRICKEEFING CHANGED TO ALUMINIM [ANTRACHTE) 1 S i & v doih --
“1’ & ASVGE DOPR: i 2 12 — L :curhis Dmn&wﬁm« RACITE]
a0 = g — 4530
ER PANEL DROFPED ABOVE DGCR = v REnadee Sl B
i E = ! L SUNDER PANEL DRCPPER ABOVE DOOH |
m " G 8! oz
. O —
] 15.01 Proposed Front Elevation  vozs ENTRANCE 16,77 HLLVIEW ROAD - SITE EXTENTS ENTRANGE b norw Huvew rOAD s
HLLVIEW
ROAD
. V7 - FALSE CHIMNETS:
EIT . 200, FALSE CHMNEYS CATTED nw
V8 - BRICKE COPING:
m TRIANGULAR BRICK COPINGZHANGED 10 BRICK ON EDGE nm
i R
nm § ) mos
10 - BRICK PANEL T ] ]
BRCK ETHER SO OF AT e ‘
o 10 oo
. ¥5 - COPING: ,
e l_ X CORNG CHANGED 1O P e
UM (ANTRACITEY
o warzo
wn wsco
am waze
“nn wsace
wwm " aze
3 No.T% HILVIEW ROAD No.T7 HILVIEW ROAD - SITE EXTENTS NO.75 HUVIEW ROAD
15.02 Proposed Rear Elevation
C319 - 55 Proposed Front & Rear Elevations (Rev A)
W o on et AT BT, s
U ——— WA 120C122 FORMAL VARATON OF COMDRON SUIVESON TEMN C319- 55 huumen me.sl-m Ervotiors fRev &)
o Ml e D R e oy | cant
S PROPOSED DRAWINGS] [ &5 | 15 [ 15 | a5 [ &5 | | ynoe| =202 1 e
- a o 5 a0 w s Tonsongsive s s e 5 st O
[ eicxmcen |5 comeroams Ts | I I T [78 wassearts oot o
Lot smre | o cassnt wrooms. la savincen | m BOnaE | GA | i I |t remanacs cancer- unss [w
™ £ - V7 -FALSE CHWNEYS:
nD... 5 N0, FALSE CHIMANEYS ORITED i
VA - BRICK COPING:
T TRIANGULAR BRICK COPING CHANGE FOR BRICK ON EDGE T2
nm V13- WINDOWS: o
ONE LARGE ROOF WINDOW CHANGED 10
TWO SMAL ROOF WINDOWS
<o moo
B o
s
m ey
V12 WINDOWS:
S Np— NEW GROUND FLOOR OPAGIUE WINDOW s
CILLS LOWERED V5. COPNG:
I U
el alE 4 - BAY WINDOW ROCF: BRICK COPNG CHANGED 1O ALUMIAIM [ANTRACITE) o
44XFIICHED ROOF CHANGED FOR FLAT ¥ V11 - REAR DOOR
wm KR NEM{ CORBCE DU — ANGLED SRIRWORE 53 HCH LEVEL wam
V13 WINDOWS: s
. CilL LOWERED. .
wm ey
“asin Py
16.01 Proposed Side Elevation (facing 79 Hillview Road)
. V7 - FALSE CHIMMEYS: - ¥ . .
- 240, FALSE CHIMNEYS OMITIED S—T
o /8 - BRICK COPING: 10
TRIANGULAR BRICK COPING CHANGE FOR BRICK ON EDGE e
T V13- ROOF SIDE WINDOWS: i
CHE LARGE ROOF WINDOW CHANGED 10
TWO SMALL ROOF WINDOWS.
o mo
wir
g
anm oo
V16 - WIDOWS,
i NEW GROUND FLODR OPAGLE WINDDW [ e
V5-COPNG: —— | ™ T T T e | e T " CILLS LOWERED
wm BRICK COPING CHANGED 10 ALUMINILM (ANTRACITE] VA - BAY WINDOW ROOF: weo
o T FICHEDROGK CHANGED KR TLAT
e - ROCF WITH CORNICE DETAL .
e V15 GROUND FLOOR HALL WINDOW:
. CILLLOWERED .
i oy
om ax
16.02 Proposed Side Elevation (facing No.75 Hillview Road)
C31% - 56 Proposed Side Elevations (Rev A)
e owr won Pt T ALY KD, A 1, #7
I Wovh  13OCT T KomaaL VARATGH OF CONDRGR Smeiint TE M| 31554 oposed Side Bevatons fav Al
O ot O B AP e 1308 23 oy |t AGHam s
e o s e s et e PROPOSED DRAWINGS| | os | 15 [ 25 | a5 | 45 | |prpapeg| 2000 100 medrean
a I R e Tonpontig orchil e ———

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HA5 4PB

99



APPENDIX 4: SITE PHOTOS

11/11/2022 15:40

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS5 4PB

100



29/11/2022 15:23

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS5 4PB

101



22/11/2022 15:23

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS5 4PB

102



APPENDIX 5: APPEAL DECISION

| 8% The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 30 January 2017

by Zoe Raygen Dip URP MRTPI

an [I‘I!-Pl!ltlﬁr ipp'ﬂiﬂtﬁd by the S-CI:M!I‘\I' of State for Communities and Local Governmeant
Decision date: 10 February 2017

Appeal Ref: APP/M5450,/W/16/3161002
77 Hillview Road, Pinner HAS 4PB

« The appeal is made under saction 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 15990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

« The appeal is made by AG Nam Properties Ltd against the dedision of the Council of the
London Borough of Harrow.

+ The application Ref P/3331/16, dated 8 July 2016, was refused by notice dated
3 Octaber 2016,

+  The development proposed is redevelopment to provide a palr of semi-detached two
storey dweallings with habitable roofspace; new vehicular access parking binfcycle
storage landscaping and boundary treatments.,

Decision

1. The appeaal is allowad and planning permission is granted for redevelopment to
provide a pair of semi-detached two storey dwellings with habitable roofspace;
new vehicular access parking binfcycle storage landscaping and boundary
treatments at 77 Hillview Road, Pinner HAS 4PB in accordance with the terms of
the application, Pf3331/16, dated & July 2016 subject to the conditions set out in
the schedule to this decision notice.

Main Issues

2. The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of
the area.

3. The area within with the appeal site is located has a mix of detached and semi-
detached properties on a fairly uniform building line. Many of the dwellings have
bean extended. This together with the variety of types of properties means the
character and appearance of the area is quite mixed. Spacing between the
houses is varied. Some have been extended directly up to the boundary with
the neighbouring property, whereas others have a small gap. Where there are
gaps or single storey side extensions/garages views are available through to tree
tops and rear gardens.

4. The existing property is a detached house set in a large plot in betwean semi-
detached properties. The proposal to demaolish it and erect a pair of semi-
detached houses would result in two plots narrower than those in the
surrounding area. Newvertheless, a gap would be maintained to either side of the
new dwellings, which would be similar to and in some cases greater than others
on the street. As a result views to rear gardens would still be available and the

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

103



Appeal Decision APP/M5450,W,/16,/2161002

proposal would not create a terracing effect. Furthermore, according te figures
supplied by the appellant although the width of aach plot would be narrower
than others in the street it would not be by a materially significant amount. The
figures have not been disputed by the Council. Moreover, although the width of
aach house would be narrower than others on the street, the building has bean
designed as one entity and would be read as such. As such its width would not
be unique or visually unacceptable.

5. The two houses would take their design cue from the neighbouring properties to
the north east, each having a gable front with a ground floor bay window. T also
saw that the mix of render and brick, together with the entrance doors to the
side of the front elevation, velux windows and the roof articulation would not be
unusual in the area. Furthermore, although the properties would contain three
storeys of accormmodation, the eaves line and height of the houses would be
broadly consistent with the houses either side and within the row of dwellings.
As a result, while the 3 storeys of accommedation would significantly increase
the amount of floorspace provided on the site compared to the existing detached
house, and according to residents, would be 84% larger than the average floor
space of Nos 71, 73, 75 and 79, it would do so in a way that would not be out of
scale, dominant or abtrusive within the street scene,

6. The existing rear garden would be subdivided to provide private space for future
occupiers, I saw that it is well stocked with trees and shrubs and has an apple
tree broadly in the centre of the garden. This is a small tree which would not be
viewed from the public realm. I have not been advised by the Council that the
tree is worthy of protection and therefora I see no constraint to the subdivision
of the garden to the rear.

7. The front garden, is prominant within the street scene, but the lawned area has
already been subdivided by a path. However, I consider that any boundary
treatment should be carefully controlled through the imposition of condition to
pravent high fancing which would be particularly harmful to the open, verdant
character of the strast.

8. I have carefully considered local resident’s concerns that the current propesal
would set a precedent for a similar development on the streest, particularly given
the row of large detached houses opposite the appeal site. [ have not though
been made aware of any specific proposals that have been foerthcoming. Each
application and appeal must be determined on its individual merits, and a
generalised concern of this nature does not justify withholding permission in this
case,

9. For the reasons above I conclude that the proposed houses would not be harmful
to the character and appearance of the area. There would therefore be no
conflict with policy DM1 of the Harrow Development Management Policies 2013,
Policy C51 of the Harrow Core Strategy 2012, Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the Londan
Flan 2016 (LP) and the Supplementary Planning Document Residential Design
Guide 2010 (the SFD). These require, amongst other things that development is
a high standard of design that responds to local context.

Other matters

10. I had the cppeortunity to view the appeal site from both the garden and kitchen
of 79 Hillview Reoad. The garden area adjacent te the rear elevation of No 79 is

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

104



Appeal Decision APP/M5450,W/16/3161002

paved and has tables and chairs for sitting out. The kitchen window is in the
single storay elemant of No 79 closest to the boundary with the appeal site.

11. The proposed building would extend a small way beyond the rear elevation of No
79, However the part of the building closest to the boundary would be single
storey with the two storey element being set further back. As a result of the
limited height and extent of the proposal beyond the rear elevation of No 79
together with the distance from the boundary it would not be significantly
overbearing to either the kitchen window or the garden space. Moreover the
Council eonfirm that the proposal would comply with guidance in the SPD as it
would not dissect the 45 degree lines taken from the closest rear corners of No
79 or No 75. As a result it would not have an unacceptable impact on ocutlock,
ar light,

12. Residents have stated that they consider the plans to be misleading but offer no
substantive evidence to demonstrate why. The plans have been prepared by a
chartered architect who is a member of professional institutes. Furthermore, the
architect has datailed the method used to ascertain measurements. I have no
reason to doubt therefore that the plans are correct. I also note that the Council
raise no issue in this respect.

13. I note the concerns of residents regarding the potential increase in cars that will
be caused through the provision of two 4 bedroom houses and the conseguent
impact on an already congested area. I saw that most houses had capacity for
off street parking, nevertheless some limited on street parking was cccurring at
the time of my site visit. [ appreciate that this was only a snap shot in time and
the demand for parking may be higher in the evenings and at weekends.
Mevertheless [ have been supplied with no substantive evidence regarding high
levels of on street parking in the area or ongoing problems of highway capacity.
Furthermore each house would have two off street parking spaces which would
be in accordance with the standards in the LP therefore making adequate
provision for parking. I am not persuaded therefore that parking and traffic
movements associated with the addition of two houses would cause harm to
highway safety.

14, The existing house is not protected by any designation to prevent its demalition.
Furthermaore, restrictive covenants, being private property matters, are outside
the planning considerations with which I am concerned in this appeal.

15. Residents also refer me to para 9.1 of section 9@ of the "Harrow Development
Flan” regarding the protection of cpen space, heritage and leafy suburbs within
Pinner and Hatch End. However, I have already concluded that the proposal
would not be harmful to the character and appearance of the area. It follows
therefore that I consider it would comply with the requirement of this paragraph.

16. The residents also refer to the document Supplementary Planning Document
Garden Land Development 2013 (SPDGLD) which provides guidance on naw
development on garden land. The document though specifically excludes the
redevelopment of an existing dwelling or group of dwellings to provide multiple
dwellings or flats on the same building footprint, plus any appropriate
enlargement (extension that accords with tha SPD), from its definition of garden
land development. The Council confirm in its committee report that although the
footprint of the proposal is larger than the existing house on site the existing
house could be extended with deap/larger extensions under Permitted
Develecpment and therefore complies with the reguirements in the SFDGLD.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

105



Appeal Decision APP/M5450,/W/16,/2161002

The contents of the SPDGLD have therefore not been determinative in this
appeal.

Conditions

17. 1 have had regard to the various planning conditions that have been suggestad
by the Council and considerad them against the tests in the Framework and the
advice in the Planning Practice Guidance and have made such amandments as
necessary to comply with those documents. In the interests of clarity it is
appropriate that there is a condition requiring that the development is carried
out in accordance with the approved plans.

18. Conditions relating to materials, boundary treatment and refuse collection are
necessary to protect the character and appearance of the area. The Council has
suggested that a condition be imposed regarding the submission of a
landscaping scheme. However, this would be a small domestic scheme where
landscaping should be left to the discretion of the owners.

19. 1 have carefully considered the Council’s submitted condition regarding the
removal of permitted development rights for the proposed houses. Paragraph
017 of the Planning Practice Guidance states that conditions restricting the
future use of permitted development rights will rarely pass the test of necessity
and should only be used in exceptional circumstances., I have seen no
canvinecing reason for this being an exceptional circumstance for remaoving
permitted developrment rights and therefore I have not imposed this condition,

20. Fellowing consultation with both partias I have imposed a condition relating to
the layout and retention of the car parking spaces in the interests of highway
safety.

21. Finally, I have imposed a condition requiring that the development is constructed
to the specifications of Part M, M4 (2), category 2: Accessible and Adaptable
Dwellings’ of the Building Regulations 2013, This is to ensure that the proposal
meets the needs of a range of different users and meets the requirements of
Policy 3.8 of the LP which states that 90% of new housing meets Building
Regulation requirement M4 (2) Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings.

Conclusion

22. For the reasons set out above, and having regard to all other matters raised, I
conclude that the appeal should be allowed.

Zoe Raygen
INSPECTOR

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

106



Appeal Decision APF/M5450/W/16/3161002

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans: C243-01 Rev A, C243-04 Rev A, C243-05
Rev A, C243-06 Rev A, C243-09 Rev A, C243-11 Rev A, C243-12 Rev A,
C243-13 Rev A, C243-15 Rev A, C243-16 Rev A, C243-17 Rev A, C243-33
Rev A, C243-34 Rev A,

3 Motwithstanding the details shown on the approved drawings, the
development hereby permitted shall not commence beyond damp proof
course level until samples of the materials to be used in the construction
of the external surfaces noted below have been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the local planning authority:

a: the dwellinghouses

b: ground surfacing
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details which shall thereafter be retained.

4) The development hereby permitted shall not commence beyond damp
proof course level until details of the boundary treatment between the
front gardens of the houses has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. The approved details shall be
implemented on site prior to the approved dwelling being first occupied
and retained thereaftar.

5) Other than on collection days, the refuse/waste bins shall at all times be
stored in the approved refuse/waste storage area on plan ref C243-12 A,
The refuse/waste storage area shall be retained and kept available for its
intended purpose at all times thereafter.

&) Al off street parking shall be laid cut and made available for use in
accordance with plan ref C243-12 A prior to the first occupation of the
approved houses and they shall be retained and kept available for their
intended purpose at all times thereafter.

7) The development hereby permitted shall be constructed to the
specifications of ‘Part M, M4 (2), category 2: Accessible and Adaptable
Dwellings’ of the Buildings Regulations 2015 and thereafter retained in
that form.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

107



This page has been left intentionally blank

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 77 Hillview Road, Pinner, HAS 4PB

108



Aaenda Iltem 12.(d)
Pages 109 to 138

Agenda Item: 2/04

o = application site

43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL P/4842/21

Planning Committee 18! January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

109



LOCATION PLAN

43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

Planning Committee 18" January 2023

110



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW

PLANNING COMMITTEE

18th January 2023
APPLICATION NUMBER: P/4842/21
VALIDATION DATE: 30/12/2021
LOCATION: 43 MORECAMBE GARDENS, STANMORE
WARD: CANONS
POSTCODE: HA7 4SL
APPLICANT: MR BABU HALAI
AGENT: MALIBU
CASE OFFICER: JOSEPHINE DUTTON

EXTENDED EXPIRY DATE: 14/11/2022

PROPOSAL

Conversion of dwelling into two flats (2 x 2 bed); front porch; single storey rear extension;
external alterations; parking; bin and cycle stores; proposed vehicle access.

The Planning Committee is asked to consider the following recommendation:

RECOMMENDATION
1) To agree the reasons for approval as set out in this report, and
2) Grant planning permission subject to subject to the Conditions listed in Appendix

1 of this report.

REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

The creation of flats on the site is appropriate in this location and the proposed
extensions and external alterations do not appear at odds with the character of
development in the immediate area and would not have an adverse impact on the
amenity of future occupiers or the occupiers of adjoining properties.

Accordingly, weighing up the development plan policies and proposals, and other
material considerations including comments received in response to notification and
consultation as set out below, officers conclude that the application is worthy of support.

INFORMATION

This application is reported to Planning Committee at the request of a nominated
member in the public interest. This application was deferred from the December
committee.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

111



Statutory Return Type: Minor Development
Council Interest: None

Net additional Floorspace: 20sgm

GLA Community Infrastructure Levy £1,200

(CIL) Contribution (provisional):

Local CIL requirement: £3,260

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the
processing of the application and the preparation of this report.

EQUALITIES

In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its equalities
obligations including its obligations under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

For the purposes of this application there are no adverse equalities issues.

S17 CRIME & DISORDER ACT

Policy D11 of the London Plan (2021) and Policy DM1 of the Development Management
Polices Local Plan require all new developments to have regard to safety and the
measures to reduce crime in the design of development proposal. It is considered that
the development does not adversely affect crime risk. However, a condition has been
recommended for evidence of certification of Secure by Design Accreditation for the
development to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
before any part of the development is occupied or used.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

112



1.0

SITE DESCRIPTION

1.1 The application site comprises of a two-storey semi-detached dwellinghouse
that faces west on Morecambe Gardens

1.2 The subject property is currently unextended and features a detached
outbuilding/shed located along the side of the property.

1.3 The attached dwelling, No. 45 adjoins to the south, while the unattached semi,
No. 2 Tintagel Drive adjoins to the north. Both adjoining properties are
unextended.

1.4 The site is identified within surface water flood zone 3a and 3b and a critical
drainage area.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 Planning permission is sought for the conversion of single dwelling to two flats
to provide two two-bedroom flats (3 persons) and the construction of a front
porch, single storey rear extension, off street vehicular parking, provision of
separate amenity space, landscaping, bin/cycle storage and external
alterations.

2.2 The proposed single storey rear extension would be 3 metres deep and 3
metres high and would contain a flat roof.

2.3 The proposed front porch would be 1 metre deep, 2.7 metres wide, 3.6 metres
max. height and would contain a pitched roof.

24 Refuse and cycle storage are to be located to the side and rear of the site

2.5 Car parking for two cars is proposed on the frontage including new vehicle
access/dropped kerb.

2.6 The rear and side garden is proposed to be segregated to provide a private
outdoor amenity space for each of the flats.

2.7 External alterations; new boundary treatment consisting of 1.8m fence and
hardstanding to the front garden to facilitate off-street parking.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.1 N/A

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

113



4.0 CONSULTATION

4.1 A total of 4 consultation letters were sent to neighbouring properties regarding
this application. The overall expiry date was 19" July 2022.

4.2 A total of 1 response has been received to date.
4.3 A summary of the responses received along with the Officer comments are set
out below:

= Potential noise disturbance (horizontal stacking).
Officer response: This point has been assessed within the body of the report.

= Ground floor extension would be obtrusive, overbearing and would cause
overshadowing to dining room and would be chamfered, contrary to the SPD

Officer response: This element of the proposal has been revised and now fully complies

with the Council’s SPD.

= Lack of usable amenity space.
Officer response: This element of the proposal has been revised to allow for a better
quality amenity space for both flats.

* Drawings do not correct number of bins.
Officer response: This element of the proposal has been revised and is now policy
compliant.

= Additional front door would be out of character.
Officer response: This element of the proposal has been revised and the additional
front door has now been omitted.

4.4 Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultation

4.5 The following consultations have been undertaken, together with the responses
received and officer comments:

LBH Drainage

With regards to the above planning application, we can confirm that the revised Flood
Risk Assessment with Compensatory Flood Storage details submitted is satisfactory.
However, the following details are still outstanding and can be conditioned.

= Drainage Details:

A drainage layout drawing showing surface and foul water connections and their outfall
details from the proposed development should be submitted. If a soakaway has been
proposed please request the applicant to submit full construction details of the
soakaway with its location, size, storage volume and calculations.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

114



Please advise the applicant, that the soakaway should be located at a minimum of 5m
away from any building and should be designed for a volume of 1m3 of empty storage
for every 16m? of hard standing/roof area draining into it.

= Permeable Paving:
Please request the applicant to submit a cross section of permeable paving construction
with full details and their maintenance plan for our approval.

Please be informed that the requested details can be conditioned with our standard
pre commencement drainage conditions/informative mentioned below.

Vehicle Crossings Officer

Although | have no objection to the crossing itself, the applicant will need to apply for
consultation on the removal of the controlled parking bay and this is carried out by traffic
and transportation and can take up to 6 months to be processed. So approval can only be
given subject to a successful consultation.

LBH Highways
No comments received

5.0 POLICIES
5.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that:

‘If regard is to be had to the Development Plan for the purpose of any
determination to be made under the Planning Acts, the determination must be
made in accordance with the Plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.’

5.2 The Government has issued the National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF
2021] sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these
should be applied and is a material consideration in the determination of this
application.

5.3 In this instance, the Development Plan comprises The London Plan 2021 [LP]
and the Local Development Framework [LDF]. The LDF comprises The Harrow
Core Strategy 2012 [CS], Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan 2013
[AAP], the Development Management Policies, Local Plan 2013 [DMP], the Site
Allocations Local Plan [SALP] 2013 and Harrow Local Area Map 2013 [LAP].

54 A full list of all the policies used in the consideration of this application is
provided as Informative 1.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

115



6.0

ASSESSMENT

6.1 The main issues are:
= Principle of the Development
= Character of the Area
= Residential Amenity
= Traffic, Parking and Servicing
» Flood Risk and Drainage

6.2 Principle of Development

6.2.1 The relevant policies are:

= The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)
= Policy CS1.A of Harrow's Core Strategy (2012)

6.2.2 Having regard to the London Plan (2021) policies H1 and H2 and the Council’s
policies and guidelines, it is considered that the proposal would provide an
increase in smaller housing stock within the Borough thereby complying with
housing growth objectives.

6.2.3 As such, the conversion of the property into two flats is considered to be
acceptable in principle, in accordance with the relevant policies subject to
acceptable details.

6.3 Character of the Area

6.3.1 The relevant policies are:
= The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)
= The London Plan (2021): D3
= Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM1, DM23
= Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1
= Mayor of London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016)
=  Supplementary Planning Document Residential Design Guide (2010)

Single storey rear extension and front porch

6.3.2 The proposed ground floor rear extension is 3m deep and 3m in height. This
complies with the SPD requirements. It is not considered to result in any
adverse visual amenity impact as it is located to the rear of the property and is
of a form which respects and complements the character and appearance of the
host building. Similarly, the proposed front porch, would also be in accordance
with the residential design guide SPD. The extension is considered to be
relatively modest in scale and would be of identical appearance to the porch at

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

116



6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

6.3.6

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

the neighbouring property. Moreover, it should be noted that both the ground
floor extension and front porch would be achievable under permitted
development rights.

Forecourt and Landscaping

The existing forecourt is fully soft landscaped, and the proposal seeks to
introduce some hardstanding in order to facilitate two off-street parking spaces.
Such a loss in forecourt greenery is regrettable, however, a large section of
lawn area would still be retained to the side of the property. Furthermore, it is
acknowledged that a number of forecourts within the immediate area appear to
largely consist of hard surfacing and therefore, the development would not be
out of keeping with other properties along this street.

A 1.8-metre-high boundary fence is also proposed along the front and side of
the dwelling which would enclose the subdivided side and rear gardens. The
height and design of the fencing would be acceptable and overall, the proposed
boundary treatment is considered to have a softer appearance compared to that
of the existing brick wall. However, it is noted that some openness would be lost
as a result of the new fencing as it would align with the original front wall of the
building and extend along the side of the property. Despite this, the proposal is
not considered to have an adverse impact within the street scene as a large
section of green open space would still be retained beyond the fence.

The refuse bins and cycle stores would be located at the side and rear of the
property and would not be visible from the street, as such, would not be
detrimental to the character and appearance of the dwellinghouse and nearby
area.

In conclusion, the proposal is considered to have an acceptable impact on the
character and appearance of the main house and the street scene and would
meet with the design aspirations of the above listed policies.

Residential Amenity
The relevant policies are:

The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

The London Plan (2021): D3, D6,

Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM1, DM26

Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1

Mayor of London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016)
Supplementary Planning Document Residential Design Guide (2010)
Technical housing standards - nationally described space standard (2016);

Impact of Development on Neighbouring Amenity

As mentioned above, the proposed single story rear extension and front porch
fully comply with the Design Guide SPD and the same development could be

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

117



6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

6.4.6

achieved under permitted development rights. As such, the extensions are not
considered to introduce any significant adverse amenity impacts to any of the
adjoining properties.

The conversion of the property would not significantly vary the intensity of use of
the dwelling and its coming and goings. It would remain residential in character
and use.

The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in terms of neighbouring
amenity impacts in accordance with the relevant policies.

Future Occupiers — Internal Configuration and Quality of Accommodation

Policy D6 of the London Plan specifies that boroughs should ensure that,
amongst other things, ‘housing development should be of high quality design
and provide adequately-sized rooms with comfortable and functional layouts’. It
also sets out the minimum internal space standards for new dwellings. The use
of these residential unit GIA’s as minima is also reiterated in Appendix 1 of the
Residential Design Guide SPD. Policy DM26 of the DMP specifies that
“proposals will be required to comply with the London Plan minimum space
standards. The National Technical Housing Standards provide additional detail.

The proposed development includes the following:

Proposed Floor Area Minimum Floor Area

Flat no. Room (m?) Required (m?)

Total GIA 61.65 61

Flat 1 b'gg‘r‘gfn 14.9 115
(2 bed 3

Single
persons) bed rgom

Storage 1.7 2.0

9.03 7.5

Flat 2 Total GIA 80.3 70

(2 bed 3 Single 99 7.5

Loft bedroom 11.5
(double) 252

Storage 7.7 2.0

6.4.7

The proposed dwellings would meet the above space standards in terms of GIA
and all of the habitable rooms are provided with windows which allow for
sufficient levels of natural light and adequate outlook. It is noted that flat A
would not meet the minimum requirements for internal storage, however, this
shortfall is very minor and considering that the flat slightly exceeds the minimum
gross internal floor area, it is considered that adequate storage space can be
provided for this unit.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

118



6.4.8

6.4.9

6.4.10

6.4.11

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

With regards to vertical stacking, the layout of the proposed flats has been
arranged to ensure bedrooms would not overlap living rooms/kitchen.
Therefore, the vertical stacking of the proposed units is acceptable. However, in
relation to horizontal stacking, it has been noted that the lounge area of flat 2
would adjoin the bedroom of the attached dwelling. Although not ideal, in any
case, this type of development would need to comply with Building Regulations
requirements for sound insulation measures to ensure there would be no
unacceptable noise transmission. As such, the proposed layout of these units is
considered acceptable in this instance.

In regard to amenity space, the existing garden would be subdivided to provide
each flat with private garden space which is considered to be of sufficient size
to meet the needs of future occupiers.

The London Plan seeks 2.5m floor to ceiling heights for 75% of the Gross
Internal Area (GIA), the Nationally Described Space Standards advise that the
minimum floor to ceiling height should be 2.3m for 75%. In terms of their head
heights, flat 2 would accord the London Plan standards, while flat 1 would meet
the Nationally Described Standards with a floor to ceiling height of 2.4m. Given
that the ground and first floors comprise of an existing house, and the proposal
is for a conversion rather than a new-build unit, flat 1 falling slightly short of the
London Plan standards, however, officer considered the marginal 100mm
shortfall acceptable in this instance.

The proposal would be considered acceptable in terms of the amenity of future
occupiers of the flats in accordance with the relevant policies.

Traffic, Parking and Servicing
The relevant policies are:

= The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

= The London Plan (2021): T4, T5, T6

= Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM42, DM45

= Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1

Policies DM1 and DM42 of the DMP give advice that developments should
make adequate provision for parking and safe access to and within the site and
not lead to any material increase in substandard vehicular access.

The site lies within a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 2, on a
scale of 1 to 6b, the latter being the best, denoting good access to public
transport. The London Plan advises a maximum parking requirement of up to
0.75 spaces for 1-2 bed dwellings in PTAL 2 areas. Two car parking space has
been provided which is considered acceptable given the low PTAL rating. A
new dropped kerb is also proposed in order to facilitate the on-street parking
and no objections have been raised from the Vehicle’s Crossing team in this
regard. However, the applicant should note that upon approval of planning
permission, there is a further mandatory legal process to be carried out in

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

119



relation to removal of the permit bays, therefore, implementation of the vehicle
crossing is subject a successful consultation carried out by the traffic and
transportation department.

6.5.4 In respect to cycle parking, Policy T.5 and table 10.2 of The London Plan (2021)
requires a minimum of 2 spaces per two bed and 1 space per one bed. The
proposal shows that each flat would have adequate outdoor storage space to
provide at least 2 cycle spaces which would be in line with the above
requirements and is therefore acceptable, subject further details of the cycle
storage units, which has been conditioned.

6.5.5 In terms of servicing, the refuse storage for the flats is proposed within the
subdivided gardens with access along the front and side of the property. This
location allows for the bins to be taken onto the frontage on collection days and
is deemed to be a suitable arrangement.

6.6 Development and Flood Risk
6.6.1 The relevant policies are:

= The National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

» London Plan (2021): S1 12, SI 13

= Harrow Development Management Policies (2013): DM9, DM10

= Harrow's Core Strategy (2012): CS1

6.6.2 Policy DM9 B of the Development Management Policies Local Plan (2013)
states, “proposals that would fail to make appropriate provision for flood risk
mitigation, or which would increase the risk or consequences of flooding, will be
refused.”.

6.6.3 The site is identified within surface water flood zone 3a and 3b according to the
Council’s surface water flood maps and is therefore at a high risk of flooding. The
applicant has submitted a flood risk assessment as part of the application and the
Council’s drainage engineer has confirmed the details are satisfactory.

As the site is located within a Critical Drainage Area, sustainable urban drainage
[SuDs] is encouraged. An informative is therefore attached to this effect.

6.7 Fire Safety
6.7.1 The relevant policies are:
= London Plan (2021): D12

6.7.2 Part A of Policy D12 of the London Plan (2021) requires the demonstration of
suitably positioned and unobstructed space for fire appliances and evacuation
assembly points, and that developments ensure robust strategies for evacuation
are in place as well as confirmation of the fire-fighting water supply.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

120



6.7.3 A condition is recommended to ensure that a fully comprehensive Planning Fire
Safety Strategy is provided prior to the completion of the development.

7.0 CONCLUSION AND REASONS FOR APPROVAL

71 The proposed development does not unduly impact on the character of the area
or the amenities of the residential occupiers of the adjoining, or nearby
properties, subject to the attached conditions. The proposed development would
therefore accord with Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021), Policy CS1 of the
Harrow Core Strategy 2012 and policies DM1 and DM26 of the Harrow
Development Management Policies Local Plan (2013).

Checked

é}’%f‘_’) V_G\/éwo

Mehdi Rezaie Vi\{ Evans . _

Head of Development Management (Interim) | Chief Planning Officer

227d December 2022 4t January 2023

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

121



APPENDIX 1: CONDITIONS AND INFORMATIVES

Conditions

1 Timin

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990

2. Approved Drawing and Documents

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out, completed and retained
in accordance with the following approved plans and document Schedule of
application documents:

1, 2, 3, 4, 5,6, 7, 8 9, 10, 11, Site Location Plan, Flood Risk Assessment
(18/08/2022), Design and Access Statement

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
extensions hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area in
accordance with Core Policy CS1.B of the Harrow Core Strategy (2012) and
Policy DM1 of the Harrow Development Management Policies Local Plan
(2013).

4. Glazing 2

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that order with or without modification), no window(s)/door(s) shall be
installed in the flank elevation(s) of the development hereby permitted without
the prior permission in writing of the local planning authority.

REASON: To safeguard the residential amenities of neighbouring residents, in
accordance with Policy DM1 of the Harrow Development Management Policies
Local Plan (2013).

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

122



5. No Balcony

The roof area of the extension hereby permitted shall not be used as a balcony,
roof garden or similar amenity area without the grant of further specific
permission from the local planning authority.

REASON: To safeguard the residential amenities of neighbouring residents, in

accordance with Policy DM1 of the Harrow Development Management Policies
Local Plan (2013).

6. Permeable Paving

Before the hard surfacing hereby permitted is brought into use the surfacing
shall EITHER be constructed from porous materials, for example, gravel,
permeable block paving or porous asphalt, OR provision shall be made to direct
run-off water from the hard surfacing to a permeable or porous area or surface
within the curtilage of the site.

REASON: To ensure that adequate and sustainable drainage facilities are
provided, and to prevent any increased risk of flooding. In accordance with
policy DM10 of the Councils Development Management Policies Local Plan
2013.

7. Cycle Storage

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied until detailed
elevations, including materials and specification of the external appearance of
the cycle storage have been first submitted to, and agreed in writing, by the
local planning authority. The details shall include: the siting and appearance of
the storage. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
details as so agreed prior to the first occupation of the development and
retained in that form thereafter.

REASON: To safeguard the appearance of the locality and to ensure the
satisfactory provision of cycle storage, to serve the development.

8. Boundary Treatment

The outdoor rear private garden areas shown on the approved plans shall be
bounded by close-boarded timber fencing to a maximum height of 1.8 metres.
The fencing required by this condition shall be erected prior to the occupation
of the flats and shall be retained thereafter.

REASON: To protect the residential amenities of occupiers of the development
in accordance with policies DM1 and DM26 of the Harrow Development
Management Policies Local Plan (2013) and the Residential Design Guide
SPD (2010)

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

123



9. Permitted Development Restriction

The development hereby permitted shall be used for Class C3
dwellinghouse(s) only and notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or
any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no
development within Schedule 2, Part 3, Class L shall take place.

REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to fully consider the effects
of development normally permitted by the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 to maintain mixed, balanced,
sustainable and inclusive communities and in the interests of residential and
visual amenity.

10. Secure by Design Accreditation

Prior to the first occupation of the development, evidence of Secured by
Design Certification shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority in
writing to be agreed, or justification shall be submitted where the accreditation
requirements cannot be met. Secure by design measures shall be
implemented and the development shall be retained in accordance with the
approved details.

REASON: In the interests of creating safer and more sustainable communities

and to safeguard amenity by reducing the risk of crime and the fear of crime.
the Local Plan (2013), and Section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998.

11. Refuse Storage

The refuse bins shall be stored at all times, other than on collection days, in
the designated refuse storage area, as shown on the approved drawing.

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area in
accordance with Core Policy CS1.B of the Harrow Core Strategy (2012) and
Policy DM1 of the Harrow Development Management Policies Local Plan
(2013).

12. Fire Safety

Prior to occupation a Fire Safety Statement shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, this statement shall
include details of how the development will function in terms of the following:

1) identify suitably positioned unobstructed outside space: a) for fire
appliances to be positioned on b) appropriate for use as an evacuation
assembly point

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

124



2) is designed to incorporate appropriate features which reduce the risk to
life and the risk of serious injury in the event of a fire; including
appropriate fire alarm systems and passive and active fire safety
measures

3) s constructed in an appropriate way to minimise the risk of fire spread

4) provide suitable and convenient means of escape, and associated
evacuation strategy for all building users

5) develop a robust management strategy for evacuation which is to be
periodically updated and published (details of how often this
management strategy is to be reviewed and published to be included),
and which all building users can have confidence in

6) provide suitable access and equipment for firefighting which is
appropriate for the size and use of the development.

The development shall be operated in accordance with the approved details in
perpetuity.

REASON: To ensure that the fire safety of the proposed building is managed
in a satisfactory manner and that the development contributes to fire safety in
line with Policy D12A of the London Plan (2021). To ensure appropriate fire
safety measures are approved before development is occupied.

Informatives
1. Policies
The following policies are relevant to this decision:

National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

The London Plan (2021): D3, D4, D6, D12, SI 12, SI1 13, T5, T6

Harrow Core Strategy (2012): CS1

Harrow Development Management Policies Local Plan (2013): DM1, DM2,
DM9, DM10, DM22, DM26, DM27, DM42, DM45

Supplementary Planning Documents:

Supplementary Planning Document Residential Design Guide (2010)
Technical housing standards - nationally described space standard (2015).
Major of London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016)

2. Pre-application engagement

Statement under Article 35(2) of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedures) (England) Order 2015

This decision has been taken in accordance with paragraphs 39-42 of The
National Planning Policy Framework. Pre-application advice was sought and
provided and the submitted application was in accordance with that advice.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

125



3. Considerate Contractor Code of Practice

The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirements in the attached
Considerate Contractor Code of Practice, in the interests of minimising any
adverse effects arising from building operations, and in particular the limitations
on hours of working.

4. Party Wall Act

The Party Wall etc. Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify and obtain
formal agreement from adjoining owner(s) where the building owner intends to
carry out building work which involves:

1. work on an existing wall shared with another property;

2. building on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

3. excavating near a neighbouring building,

and that work falls within the scope of the Act.

Procedures under this Act are quite separate from the need for planning
permission or building regulations approval.

“The Party Wall etc. Act 1996: Explanatory booklet” is available free of charge
from: Communities and Local Government Publications, PO Box 236,
Wetherby, LS23 7NB. Please quote Product code: 02 BR 00862 when ordering.
Also available for download from the CLG website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/planningandbuilding/pdf/133214.pdf

Tel: 0870 1226 236 Fax: 0870 1226 237
Textphone: 0870 1207 405
E-mail: communities@twoten.com

5. Liability for Damage to Highway

The applicant is advised to ensure that the highway is not interfered with or
obstructed at any time during the execution of any works on land adjacent to a
highway. The applicant is liable for any damage caused to any footway,
footpath, grass verge, vehicle crossing, carriageway or highway asset. Please
report any damage to nrswa@harrow.gov.uk or telephone 020 8424 1884
where assistance with the repair of the damage is available, at the applicants
expense. Failure to report any damage could result in a charge being levied
against the property.

6. Surface and foul water connections

The applicant is advised that the Drainage Authority in Harrow recommends the
submission of a drainage plan, for their approval, indicating all surface and foul
water connections and their outfall details. Please also note that separate
systems are used in Harrow for surface water and foul water discharge. Please
email infrastructure@harrow.gov.uk with your plans.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

126


http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/planningandbuilding/pdf/133214.pdf
mailto:communities@twoten.com
mailto:infrastructure@harrow.gov.uk

7. Designing Out Crime

For further information regarding Secure By Design, the applicant can contact
the North West London Designing Out Crime Group on the following:
DOCOMailbox.NW@met.police.uk

8. Mayoral CIL

Please be advised that approval of this application (either by Harrow Council, or
subsequently by the Planning Inspectorate if allowed on appeal following a
refusal by Harrow Council) will attract a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
liability, which is payable upon the commencement of development. This charge
is levied under s.206 of the Planning Act 2008 Harrow Council, as CIL collecting
authority, has responsibility for the collection of the Mayoral CIL

The Provisional Mayoral CIL liability for the application, based on the Mayoral
CIL levy rate for Harrow of £60/sqm is £2,604.

The floorspace subject to CIL may also change as a result of more detailed
measuring and taking into account any in-use floor space and relief grants (i.e.
for example, social housing).

You are advised to visit the planning portal website where you can download
the appropriate document templates.

Please complete and return the Assumption of Liabilty Form 1 and CIL
Additional Information Form 0.

https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form 1 assumption of li

ability.pdf
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/cil guestions.pdf

If you have a Commencement Date please also complete CIL Form 6:
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form 6 commencement

notice.pdf

The above forms should be emailed to HarrowCIL@Harrow.gov.uk

Please note that the above forms must be completed and provided to the
Council prior to the commencement of the development; failure to do this may
result in surcharges and penalties

9. Harrow CIL

Harrow has a Community Infrastructure Levy which applies Borough wide for
certain developments of over 100sqgm gross internal floor space.

Harrow's Charges are:

Residential (Use Class C3) - £110 per sqm,;

Hotels (Use Class C1), Residential Institutions except Hospitals, (Use Class
C2), Student Accommodation, Hostels and HMOs (Sui generis) - £55 per sgm;

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

127


mailto:DOCOMailbox.NW@met.police.uk
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_1_assumption_of_liability.pdf
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_1_assumption_of_liability.pdf
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/cil_questions.pdf
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_6_commencement_notice.pdf
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_6_commencement_notice.pdf
mailto:HarrowCIL@harrow.gov.uk

Retail (Use Class A1), Financial & Professional Services (Use Class A2),
Restaurants and Cafes (Use Class A3) Drinking Establishments (Use Class A4)
Hot Food Takeaways (Use Class A5) - £100 per sqm

All other uses - Nil.

The Provisional Harrow CIL liability for the application, based on the Harrow CIL
levy rate for Harrow of £110/sqm is £4,774

This amount includes indexation which is 333/224. The floorspace subject to
CIL may also change as a result of more detailed measuring and taking into
account any in-use floor space and relief grants (i.e. for example, social
housing).

The CIL Liability is payable upon the commencement of development.
You are advised to visit the planning portal website where you can download
the relevant CIL Forms.

Please complete and return the Assumption of Liability Form 1 and CIL
Additional Information Form 0.

https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form 1 assumption of li

ability.pdf
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/cil questions.pdf

If you have a Commencement Date please also complete CIL Form 6:
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form 6 commencement

notice.pdf

The above forms should be emailed to HarrowCIL@Harrow.gov.uk. Please
note that the above forms must be completed and provided to the Council prior
to the commencement of the development; failure to do this may result in
surcharges

10. Soakaway
The applicant is advised that the soakaway should be located at a minimum of
5m away from any building and should be designed for a volume of 1m3 of
empty storage for every 16m2 of hard standing/roof area draining into it.

11. Vehicle Crossing
The applicant is advised to contact Vehicle Crossings Team on
VehicleCrossings@harrow.gov.uk for constraints & further guidance and
regarding the mandatory legal process in relation to the removal of the permit
bays.

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

128


https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_1_assumption_of_liability.pdf
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_1_assumption_of_liability.pdf
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/cil_questions.pdf
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_6_commencement_notice.pdf
https://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/uploads/1app/forms/form_6_commencement_notice.pdf
mailto:HarrowCIL@harrow.gov.uk
mailto:VehicleCrossings@harrow.gov.uk

APPENDIX 2: SITE PLAN

43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

Planning Committee 18" January 2023

129



APPENDIX 3: SITE PHOTOGRAPHS

Front and Side Elevation




Rear Elevation and Garden

=
c
<
o



Planning Committee 18" January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

132



43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

Planning Committee 18" January 2023

133



APPENDIX 4: PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

Existing and Proposed Elevations

I
I

side viewed from No 45

side

[Hl M =

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

134



N

boundary

[
I

‘ }\ cloakregom|

\ KITCHEN I
- N

\/ store

LOUNGE ]

w DINING

Existing Floor Plans

(]
-
(=]
=
m

boundary

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR

—
bathroom

eaves

storeage

bedroom 4
[ 1
EXISTING LOFT FLOOR ——
43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

area 27 sqm

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR 135



Proposed Floor plans

I | — | —
i under
FLAT 2 stai
| —> stair bathroom shower
L|| storage room Bedroom 2
/ porch 1 person 9.03 sgm
FLAT 1
store 5
= [m
kitchen lounge open plan
Bedroom 1 by
2 person 14.9 sgm
boundary
boundary

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR LAYOUT 1:50

showe kitchen
room

I | ——
bathroom
} bedroom 1
Fremness lounge
eaves
storeage
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR 1:50
bedroom 2
[
PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR 1:50
Existing and Proposed Site Plan
Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

136



existing store

1| 3 |§ N\
g i E
&
Frant
Garden
i,
N 5
existing
round
floor
boundary
EXISTING LOCATION PLAN 1:100
perimeter timber
feather edged
fencing to be 1.8m
high
perimeter timber
feather edged
fencing to be 1.8m
: existing store
high o be uiilised a5
cycle and dustbin
- osuse
g g £ Lawn Front
-k g g Garden area= 71.68 sq m
-z & =
% store, bicycle shed and dustbin
enclosure for FLAT 2
feather edged
timber gates,
\ -
&
car parking 2
. » proposed
propesed existing e
crossover house
amenity space for FLAT |
car parking |
’/ Hard Surface arca= 46.55 sq m
boundary

PROPOSED LOCATION PLAN 1:100

Planning Committee 18" January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

137



This page has been left intentionally blank

Planning Committee 18t January 2023 43 Morecambe Gardens, Stanmore, HA7 4SL

138



	Agenda
	Planning Committee  Agenda
	Useful Information
	Joining the Meeting virtually
	Filming / recording
	Agenda - Part I
	Guidance Note for Members of the Public attending the Planning Committee  (Pages 5 - 8)
	Agenda - Part II




	 Guidance Note for Members of the Public attending the Planning Committee
	Guidance Note for Members of the Public
	attending the Planning Committee
	Typical Planning Committee layout for the Auditorium
	Order of Committee Business
	Rights of Objectors & Applicants to speak at Planning Committees
	Addendum
	Decisions taken by the Planning Committee
	Refuse permission:
	Grant permission as recommended:
	Minded to grant permission contrary to officer’s recommendation:
	Defer for a site visit:
	Defer for further information/to seek amendments:
	Grant permission subject to a legal agreement:



	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	Planning Committee
	Minutes
	7 December 2022



	11.(a) 1/01, Waxwell Lane Car Park, P/1304/20
	12.(a) 2/01, 22 Hawthorn Drive, P/3789/22
	12.(b) 2/02, 77 Hillview Road, P/3574/22
	12.(c) 2/03, 77 Hillview Road, P/3564/22
	12.(d) 2/04, 43 Morecombe Gardens, P/4842/21

